

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AGENCY county of tulare agenda item

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

KUYLER CROCKER District One

PETE VANDER POEL District Two

AMY SHUKLIAN District Three

J. STEVEN WORTHLEY District Four

> MIKE ENNIS District Five

AGENDA DATE: October 30, 2018 – REVISED

Public Hearing Required Scheduled Public Hearing w/Clerk Published Notice Required Advertised Published Notice County Counsel Sign-Off Meet & Confer Required Electronic file(s) has been sent Budget Transfer (Aud 308) attached Personnel Resolution attached	Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes		N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A		
Personnel Resolution attached Agreements are attached and signature	Yes	for C	N/A N/A	is marked	with
tab(s)/flag(s)	Yes		N/A		
CONTACT PERSON: Celeste Perez PHO	NE:	(559) 6	624-7010		

SUBJECT: Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan Approval and Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Detention Project Grant Resolution

REQUEST(S):

That the Board of Supervisors sitting as the Board of Supervisors of the Tulare County Flood Control District:

- 1. Approve the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan; and
- 2. Authorize and direct the Resource Management Agency Director or designees to make revisions to the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan as required by the California State Water Resources Control Board; and
- Authorize and direct the Resource Management Agency Director to certify and submit the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan to the California State Water Resources Control Board under the Storm Water Grant Program Guidelines;
- 4. Authorize and direct the Chairman of the Board, or their designee, to sign the funding agreement for the Project and any amendments thereto subject to County Counsel approval;
- 5. Authorize and designate the Resource Management Agency Director, or their designee, to represent the Tulare County Flood Control District in carrying out the Tulare County Flood Control District's responsibilities under the funding agreement, including but not limited to certifying invoices and disbursement requests for Project costs, and compliance with applicable state and federal laws; and
- 6. Approve the attached resolution in Attachment "A" regarding the Juvenile Detention Facility Detention/Retention Project.

SUBJECT:CottonwoodCreekStormWaterResourcesPlanApprovalandCottonwoodCreekStormWaterDetentionProjectGrantResolutionDATE:October 30, 2018

SUMMARY:

Resource Management Agency (RMA), on behalf of the Flood Control District, is the lead agency on a project to design and construct flood control improvements to Cottonwood Creek in the vicinity of the Juvenile Detention Facility (the Project), which includes the realignment of approximately 8,500 linear feet of creek and the development of retention or detention basins in the area. An application for the Project was previously submitted to the State Water Resources Control Board (Water Board) for a grant under the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 (Proposition 1) through Resolution No. FC2016-02. Proposition 1 authorized funding for 200 million in grants for storm water and dry weather runoff capture projects with the intent to encourage the use of storm water and dry weather runoff as a resource to improve water quality, reduce localized flooding, and increase water supplies for beneficial uses and the environment.

After submission, the project was placed on the Water Board's project waitlist. On August 28, 2018, the Water Board notified the County that \$1,204,310 in matching grant funds are conditionally available pending the development and approval of the Cottonwood Creek Watershed Storm Water Resources Plan (SWRP) within 90 days, no later than November 25, 2018, from the date of notification and successful negotiation of a funding agreement with the State. If a funding agreement for this project is issued, RMA staff will bring it for separate consideration and approval by the Tulare County Flood Control District. To further the grant process, the Flood Control District must approve the attached resolution in order to be eligible for funding. However, staff will return to your Board for approval of the funding agreement. Depending on the time line of the agreement and requirements by the Water Board, this may happen before the agreement is signed or staff will return to ratify the agreement if funding for this project would be jeopardized by a delay in returning the signed funding agreement. Further, the County resolved to support of the Flood Control District's actions on this project at a recent meeting (Resolution 2018-0844).

An SWRP identifies and prioritizes storm water and dry weather runoff capture projects in the study area through detailed analyses of watershed conditions and processes, surface and groundwater resources, and the multiple benefits that can be achieved through the storm water related capital projects. An approved SWRP is necessary for a project to be eligible to receive funding under the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 (Proposition 1).

The SWRP identifies four projects in the Cottonwood Creek Basin, as follows:

1. Juvenile Detention Facility Detention/Retention Project – A multi-part project that includes the development of 2 detention basins, a flood easement on adjacent agricultural land, a berm on the south portion of the creek through the project area to provide flood protection, and realignment of approximately 8,500 feet of the creek bottom to restore that segment of Cottonwood Creek to its natural meandering

SUBJECT:CottonwoodCreekStormWaterResourcesPlanApprovalandCottonwoodCreekStormWaterDetentionProjectGrantResolutionDATE:October 30, 2018

creek.

2. Yettem Detention Project – An 80-acre basin located near the intersection of Road 144 and Avenue 384 that will temporarily detain high flows and decrease the severity of flooding in the rural community of Yettem.

3. Upper Detention/Retention Project – A shallow 300 acre-ft. basin located downstream from the Friant-Kern Canal near the intersection of Road 164 and Avenue 362 in Type A soils that will facilitate groundwater recharge.

4. Robles Lomas Ranch Detention Project – An approximately 60 feet tall detention dam that would store approximately 5,000 acre-feet. The dam will not store water for capture and infiltration but will reduce peak flows downstream in Cottonwood Creek.

The SWRP uses a metrics based analysis to quantify, compare, and prioritize projects and their ability to meet the Plan's objectives of reducing flood flows, improve water quality, augment local water supplies, and restore habitat in the watershed, as specified in the 2015 Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines.

The SWRP has an education, outreach and public participation component and staff conducted the following outreach, meetings and presentations to this effect:

- July 11, 2017 Stone Corral Elementary School
- September 14, 2017 Ivanhoe Elementary School
- June 6, 2018 & August 9, 2018 Provost & Pritchard and Self Help Enterprises on behalf of Kings Basin Water Authority
- September 19, 2018 Kaweah Sub-Basin Management Team
- September 20, 2018 Kings River East GSA
- September 28, 2018 Tulare County Flood Commission
- October 1, 2018 SWRP Website Launched, Advertisement in Visalia Times-Delta, Start of Draft SWRP Comment Period
- October 8, 2018 Tulare County Water Commission
- October 9, 2018 Tulare County Board of Supervisors
- October 12, 2018 Close of Draft SWRP Comment Period at Noon

A draft of the SWRP was released on the County's website for public comment on October 1, 2018 at 8:00 AM until October 12, 2018 at 12:00 noon. The comments received during this period are summarized as follows:

- Surface Water Rights for Cottonwood Creek: It was stated that surface water rights for Cottonwood Creek have been fully allocated and the diversion of water from controlled storm events may impact these rights.
- Land Use and Investment in the Vicinity of the Upper Detention/Retention Project: It was stated that the Upper Detention/Retention Project may impact the investment of certain agricultural interests in the project vicinity.

SUBJECT:CottonwoodCreekStormWaterResourcesPlanApprovalandCottonwoodCreekStormWaterDetentionProjectGrantResolutionDATE:October 30, 2018

The comments have been filed in the appendix and will be addressed as necessary.

After approval, RMA staff will be forwarding the SWRP to the Water Board for review and comments. Any comments from the Water Board will need to be addressed the SWRP certified in order to be considered complete. As such, RMA has requested that the Board authorize the RMA Director to address the Water Board's comments, make revisions to the SWRP as necessary and certify the SWRP as required by the Water Board's Storm Water Grant Program Guidelines.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING:

There is No Net County Cost to the General Fund.

The SWRP was included in the budget and is being funded by the Tulare County Flood Control District under line 771-771-2000-7043.

The construction of the Juvenile Detention Facility Detention/Retention Project was included within the budget on line 771-771-2000-7043, with the grant included in line 771-771-2000-5054. Should the ultimate project cost or grant from the state not match the budgeted amount, staff will return with an AUD308 when staff brings the grant agreement for consideration.

LINKAGE TO THE COUNTY OF TULARE STRATEGIC BUSINESS PLAN:

The County's five-year strategic plan includes the "Safety and Security" initiative and the "Quality of Life" initiative. This project will improve the quality of life through the construction of storm water retention facilities, that will serve to replenish groundwater, and will enhance safety and security by improving flood protection in the area.

ADMINISTRATIVE SIGN-OFF:

Reed Schenke, P.E. Director

Cc: County Administrative Office

Attachment(s) Attachment "A" – Resolution for the Juvenile Detention Facility Detention/Retention Project Attachment "B" – Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan

BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS SITTING AS THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TULARE COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT COUNTY OF TULARE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

)

)

)

)

IN THE MATTER OF THE COTTONWOOD CREEK STORM WATER RESOURCES PLAN APPROVAL AND COTTONWOOD CREEK STORM WATER DETENTION PROJECT GRANT RESOLUTION) Resolution No. FC_____

UPON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR ______, SECONDED BY SUPERVISOR ______, THE FOLLOWING WAS ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, AT AN OFFICIAL MEETING HELD <u>OCTOBER 30, 2018</u>, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:

AYES: NOES: ABSTAIN: ABSENT:

ATTEST: JASON T. BRITT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER/ CLERK, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

BY:

Deputy Clerk

1. Approved the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan; and

2. Authorized and directed the Resource Management Agency Director or designees to make revisions to the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan as required by the California State Water Resources Control Board; and

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

- 3. Authorized and directed the Resource Management Agency Director to certify and submit the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan to the California State Water Resources Control Board under the Storm Water Grant Program Guidelines;
- 4. Authorized and directed the Chairman of the Board, or their designee, to sign the funding agreement for the Project and any amendments thereto subject to County Counsel approval;
- 5. Authorized and designated the Resource Management Agency Director, or their designee, to represent the Tulare County Flood Control District in carrying out the Tulare County Flood Control District's responsibilities under the funding agreement, including but not limited to certifying invoices and disbursement requests for Project costs, and compliance with applicable state and federal laws; and
- 6. Approved the attached resolution in Attachment "A" regarding the Juvenile Detention Facility Detention/Retention Project.

Attachment "A"

Resolution for the Juvenile Detention Facility Detention/Retention Project

BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS SITTING AS THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TULARE COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT COUNTY OF TULARE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

RESOLUTION NO. FC_____

OCTOBER 30, 2018

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ENTERING INTO A FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD AND AUTHORIZING AND DESIGNATING A REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE COTTONWOOD CREEK STORM WATER RESOURCES PLAN APPROVAL AND COTTONWOOD CREEK STORM WATER DETENTION PROJECT GRANT RESOLUTION

Whereas, the Tulare County Flood Control District has submitted an application to the State Water Resources Control Board for funding for the Juvenile Detention Facility Detention/Retention Project, which includes the realignment of approximately 8,500 linear feet of Cottonwood Creek and the construction of flood control facilities (Project); and

Whereas, prior to the State Water Resources Control Board's executing a funding agreement, the Tulare County Flood Control District is required to adopt a resolution authorizing an agent, or representative, to sign the funding agreement, amendments, and requests for disbursement on behalf of the Tulare County Flood Control District, and to carry out other necessary Project-related activities;

Now, therefore, be it resolved and ordered, that the Tulare County Flood Control District is hereby authorized to carry out the Project, enter into a funding agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board, and accept and expend State funds for the Project; and

Be it further resolved and ordered, that the Chairman of the Board, or designee, is hereby authorized and designated to sign, for and on behalf of the Tulare County Flood Control District, the funding agreement for the Project and any amendments thereto subject to review and approval by County Counsel; and

Be it further resolved and ordered, that the Resource Management Agency Director, or designee, is hereby authorized and designated to represent the Tulare County Flood Control District in carrying out the Tulare County Flood Control District's responsibilities under the funding agreement, including certifying invoices and disbursement requests for Project costs on behalf of the Tulare County Flood Control District and compliance with applicable state and federal laws.

Be it further resolved and ordered, that any and all actions, whether previously or subsequently taken by the Tulare County Flood Control District, which are consistent with the intent and purposes of the foregoing resolution, shall be, and hereby are, in all respects, ratified, approved and confirmed.

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly adopted by the Board of Supervisors at the meeting thereof held on October 30, 2018.

Ayes:	
Noes:	
Abstained:	
Absent:	

Signature: JASON T. BRITT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER/ CLERK, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Attachment "B"

Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan

Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan

Final Draft October 2018

Project Number 184031062

Prepared for:

Tulare County Resource Management Agency

Prepared by:

Stantec 3301 C Street, Suite 1900 Sacramento, CA 95816



This page left blank intentionally.

Table of Contents

Section	ו 1 Plan Objectives1-1
1.1	Introduction1-1
1.2	Objectives1-1
1.3	Plan Organization1-1
Section	n 2 Watershed Identification2-1
2.1	Watersheds and Subwatersheds2-1
2.2	Political and Service-Area Boundaries2-1
2.3	Water Quality Priorities2-7
2.4	Surface Water and Groundwater Resources2-8
Section	n 3 Water Quality Compliance3-1
3.1	Land Use and Activities
3.2 Syste	Total Maxiumum Daily Load and National Pollutant Discharge Elimination em Compliance
3.3	Waste-Discharge Permit Compliance
Section	1 4 Organization, Coordination, and Collaboration
4.1	Local Agencies4-1
4.1	.1 Tulare County
4.1	.2 Other Local Agencies
4.2	Nongovernmental Organizations4-6
4.3	Integrated Regional Water Management Groups4-7
4.3	8.1 Kings Basin IRWM Group4-7
4.3	A.2 Kaweah River Basin IRWM Group4-8
4.4	Regulatory Agencies
4.4	.1 State Water Resources Control Board
4.4	.2 Relationship with Other Planning Documents
4.5	Public Outreach and Engagement4-12
4.5	5.1 Community Participation
Sectior	n 5 Quantitative Methods5-1
5.1	Metrics-Based Analysis5-1
5.1	.1 Water Quality Project Analysis5-1

	5.1	.2	Storm Water Capture and Use Project Analysis	5-3
	5.1	.3	Water Supply and Flood Management Project Analysis	5-3
	5.1	.4	Environmental and Community-Benefit Analysis	5-4
Se	ction	6 P	roject Identification and Prioritization	6-1
6	6.1	Opp	portunities to Augment Local Water Supply	6-1
	6.1	.1	Juvenile Detention Facility – Cottonwood Creek Project	6-3
	6.1	.2	Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project	6-4
	6.1	.3	Upper Detention/Retention Project	6-4
6	6.2	Opp	portunities for Source Control	6-5
6	6.3	Proj	jects that Reestablish Natural Water Drainage	6-5
6	6.4	Opp	portunities to Develop, Restore, or Enhance Habitat	6-5
6	6.5	Орр	portunities to Capture, Clean, Store, and Use Storm Water	6-5
	6.5	.1	Flood Management Benefits	6-5
	6.5	.2	Water Quality Benefits	6-9
e F	6.6 Rede ^v	Des veloj	ign Criteria and Best management Practices for New Development an pment	d 6-11
6	6.7	Proj	ject Prioritization Using Quantitative Methods	6-11
6	6.8	Арр	roach and Geospatial Analysis	6-13
6	6.9	Sun	nmary of Benefits	6-13
Se	ction	n 7 Ir	nplementation Strategy and Schedule	7-1
7	7.1	Res	ources for Implementation	7-1
	7.1	.1	Statement of Funding Adequacy	7-2
	7.1	.2	Federal Funding Assistance	7-5
7	7.2	Proj	ject and Program Implementation	7-10
7	7.3	Data	a Collection and Decision Support Tools	7-11
7	7.4	Imp	lementation Strategy	7-11
	7.4	.1	Timeline for Integration with Existing Plans	7-12
	7.4	.2	Implementation Actions	7-12
	7.4	.3	Responsible Parties	7-13
	7.4	.4	Project Tracking Procedures	7-14
	7.4	.5	Planned Project Timeline	7-15
	7.4	.6	Adaptive Management Procedure	7-19
	7.4	.7	Permitting	7-21

7.5	Incorporation with IRWM Plan7-22				
Sectio	n 8 Education, Outreach, and Public Participation				
8.1	Community Participation8-1				
8.1	.1 Watershed-Based Participation8-1				
8.1	.2 Site-Specific Participation				
8.1	.3 Other Communication Activities				
8.2	Implementation of Technical and Policy Issues8-3				
8.3	Mechanisms to Facilitate Public Participation8-3				
8.4	Project Design Engagement8-4				
8.5	Audience Identification8-4				
8.6	Disadvantaged and Climate-Vulnerable Communities8-6				
8.7	Identification of Environmental Injustice Needs				
8.8	Schedule for Public Engagement and Education8-9				
Sectio	n 9 References9-1				
Section 10 Appendix A – Community Meetings Coordinated with Nongovernmental Organizations10-1					
Section 11 Appendix B – Public Comments to Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan					
Section 12 Appendix C – Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan Email Notification List					
Sectio	Section 13 Appendix D – Native American Heritage Commission Response13-1				
Section Certific	n 14 Appendix E – Storm Water Resource Plan Checklist and Self- ation14-1				

Figures

Figure 2-1. Cottonwood Creek Watershed	2-3
Figure 2-2. Cottonwood Creek Watershed Natural Habitat Boundaries	2-4
Figure 2-3. Cottonwood Creek Watershed Political Boundaries	2-5
Figure 2-4. Cottonwood Creek Watershed Service-Area Boundaries	2-6
Figure 4-1. Cottonwood Creek Groundwater Sustainability Agency Boundaries	4-5
Figure 4-2. Cottonwood Creek IRWMP Boundaries	4-9
Figure 5-1. Mechanistic Growth Model for Water Quality Analysis	5-3
Figure 6-1. Cottonwood Creek Project Locations	6-2
Figure 7-1. Iterative Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan Amendment	
Process	7-15

Figure 8-1.	Cottonwood Creek Disadvantaged	Communities8-5
1.90.000.1	eenen ereen ereen ereauranaget	

Tables

Table 3-1. Land-Use Type Present in Watersned
Table 3-2. Event Mean Concentration by Land-Use Type from Stein et al. (2007) 3-2
Table 4-1. Domestic Water Services Providers in the Cottonwood Creek
Watershed
Table 4-2. Groundwater Sustainability Agencies, Member Agencies
Table 4-3. Tulare County General Plan Policies Addressing Storm Water
Table 6-1. Runoff Volume Captured and Infiltrated at the JDF Complex Project
Table 6-2. Estimated Annual Infiltration at the JDF Complex Project Site
Table 6-3. Estimated Annual Infiltration at the Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control
Project Site6-4
Table 6-4. Estimated Annual Infiltration at the UDR Project Site
Table 6-5. Acres of Habitat Restoration 6-5
Table 6-6. Runoff Volume Decrease for JDF Complex Project
Table 6-7. Runoff Volume Decrease for Yettem Project
Table 6-8. Peak Discharge Decrease Downstream from the Yettem Project
Table 6-9. Runoff Volume Decrease for UDR Project 6-8
Table 6-10. Peak Discharge Decrease Downstream from UDR Project
Table 6-11. Peak Discharge Decrease Downstream from the Robles Project
Table 6-12. Peak Discharge Decrease for Robles Lomas Ranch Project at
Watershed Outlet6-9
Table 6-13. Percent Load Reduction for JDF Complex Project
Table 6-14. Percent Load Reduction for Yettem Project 6-10
Table 6-15. Percent Load Reduction for Upper Detention/Retention Basin
Table 6-16. Project Prioritization for Augmenting Local Water Supply 6-11
Table 6-17. Project Prioritization for Restoring Habitat
Table 6-18. Project Prioritization for Flood Management Peak Flow Reduction
Table 6-19. Project Prioritization for Flood Management Peak Flow Reduction6-12
Table 6-20. Overall Project Prioritization 6-13
Table 7-1. Cost Projection of Plan Projects 7-2
Table 7-2. Identified Project-Funding Opportunities 7-2
Table 7-3. Cottonwood Creek State Funding Opportunities 7-3
Table 7-4. Federal Funding Opportunities
Table 7-5. Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan Multi-Benefit
Categories
Table 7-6. Funding Contingent Plan Project Schedule
Table 7-7. Anticipated Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan
Implementation and Update Activities7-20
Table 7-8. Identified Project Permits 7-21

Table 8-1. DAC/SDAC Communities in Cottonwood Creek	8-7
Table 8-2. NAHC Tribal Coordination List	8-9
Table 8-3. Public Engagement and Education Schedule	8-9

Acronyms and Abbreviations

AB	Assembly Bill
AF	acre-feet
CalEnviroScreen	California Communities Environmental Health Screening
cfs	cubic feet per second
Commission	Tulare County Flood Control Commission
County	County of Tulare
CSD	community services district
DAC	disadvantaged community
District	Tulare County Flood Control District
DWR	California Department of Water Resources
FEMA	Federal Emergency Management Agency
GSA	groundwater sustainability agency
GSP	groundwater sustainability plan
HEC-HMC	Hydrologic Engineering Center – Hydrologic Modeling System
IRWM	integrated regional water management
JDF Complex	Juvenile Detention Facility – Cottonwood Creek Project
MHI	median household income
mL	milliliter
NAHC	California Native American Heritage Commission

NGO	nongovernmental organization
NPDES	National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
Plan	Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan
PUD	public utilities district
REC-1	water contact recreation
REC-2	noncontact water recreation
RMA	Tulare County Resource Management Agency
Robles Project	Robles Lomas Ranch Project
RWQCB	Regional Water Quality Control Board
SDAC	severely disadvantaged community
SGMA	Sustainable Groundwater Management Agency
SHE	Self-Help Enterprises
State Water Board	California State Water Resources Control Board
SWRP	Storm Water Resource Plan
TMDL	total maximum daily load
UDR Project	Upper Detention/Retention Project
USACE	United States Army Corps of Engineers
USDA	United States Department of Agriculture
USEPA	United States Environmental Protection Agency
Water Quality Control Plan	Water Quality Control Plan for the Tulare Lake Basin
Watershed	Cottonwood Creek Watershed
WC	Water Code
WD	Water District
Yettem Project	Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project

1.1 INTRODUCTION

California Water Code Section 10563 (as amended by Senate Bill 985) requires public agencies to develop a storm water resource plan (SWRP) as a condition of receiving grant funds from bonds approved after January 2014 for storm water and dry weather runoff capture projects. The intent of Senate Bill 985 is to encourage the use of storm water and dry-weather runoff as a resource to improve water quality, reduce localized flooding, and to increase water supplies for beneficial uses and the environment.

Proposition 1 (Assembly Bill 1471) authorized \$7.545 billion in general obligation bonds for water projects, of which, \$200 million will be awarded to multi-benefit storm water management projects. Tulare County has applied for Proposition 1 Storm Water Grant Program funding to assist with construction of the Juvenile Detention Facility – Cottonwood Creek Flood Control (JDF Complex) Project, located in the Cottonwood Creek Watershed (Watershed). This necessitated development of a Storm Water Resource Plan (SWRP) for the Watershed, pursuant to Water Code Section 1056 requirements.

1.2 OBJECTIVES

The Cottonwood Creek Watershed Storm Water Resource Plan (Plan) was developed to comply with Water Code Section 10562 through guidance established by the California State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) for the development of SWRPs. The objective of the Plan is to identify multi-benefit storm water projects to improve water quality, reduce localized flooding, and to increase supplies for beneficial uses and the environment in the Watershed.

1.3 PLAN ORGANIZATION

This Plan is divided into nine sections:

Section 1 Plan Objectives provides an overview of Plan objectives and organization.

Section 2 Watershed Identification identifies the boundaries of the Cottonwood Creek Watershed, water quality priorities, and surface and groundwater resources in the Watershed.

Section 3 Water Quality Compliance describes the land-use activities, total maximum daily loads (TMDL) and National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) compliance, along with waste-discharge permit compliance.

Section 4 Organization, Coordination, and Collaboration describes the coordination and outreach activities completed by Tulare County in development of this Plan.

Section 5 Quantitative Methods discusses the quantitative methods used to determine the benefits for the projects identified in the Plan.

Section 6 Project Identification and Prioritization discusses the projects included in the Plan and the qualitative analysis results of the identified benefits.

Section 7 Implementation Strategy and Schedule describes the resources required for the projects and Plan implementation; including data collection and decision support, and incorporation with integrated regional water management (IRWM) planning efforts.

Section 8 Education, Outreach, and Public Participation discusses community participation in the Plan and a schedule for public engagement.

Section 9 References lists the references used in completing the Plan.

Section 10-14 Appendices contain reference documents and correspondence.

Reader's Note: Guidelines from the 2015 Storm Water Resource Plan Checklist and Self-Certification (State Water Resources Control Board 2015) have been included throughout this Plan in italicized text. These guidelines appear at the beginning of relevant sections and clarify how the Plan addresses each required SWRP element.

2.1 WATERSHEDS AND SUBWATERSHEDS

Plan identifies watershed and subwatershed(s) for storm water resource planning.

The Watershed is shown on Figure 2-1, including subbasins. The Watershed extent is generally based on US Geologic Survey boundaries. However, because of the extensive modification of drainage patterns that has occurred in the valley portion of the Watershed, it was necessary to determine the internal subbasins using ArcGIS and the GEO-HMS program from the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). This program uses existing topography and drainage channels to determine subbasin boundaries.

Particular attention was given to the effects of the Friant-Kern and other canals on the drainage patterns in the Watershed. The upstream, or foothill portion, of the Watershed is 95 percent natural habitat with the delineations shown in Figure 2-2. The downstream, valley, or agricultural lowlands portions of the Watershed is 14 percent natural habitat with the delineations shown in Figure 2-2.

The Cottonwood Creek Watershed, and the adjacent Sand Creek Watershed to the north, are two of the few Tulare County watersheds that originate in the foothills of the Sierra Nevada but are not controlled like major rivers such as the neighboring Kaweah/St. Johns River. Sand Creek is included in the analysis because of the potential for flows from Sand Creek to enter Cottonwood Creek via overflow into the Alta East Branch Canal.

2.2 POLITICAL AND SERVICE-AREA BOUNDARIES

The political boundaries and service-area boundaries of water, wastewater, and landuse agencies in the Watershed are shown in Figures 2-3 and 2-4.

The upper portion of the Watershed at 89.65 square miles (sq. mi.) is comprised of foothills with elevations ranging from 500 to 3,000 feet, and a varied topography of gently rolling hills with some rougher terrain of steep hills in the upper reaches of the Watershed. Numerous small streams traverse this area and join to form Cottonwood Creek before entering the valley floor. The main Plan approach to that part of the watershed is to maintain cleanliness and flow of existing drainage patterns, except for the potential to develop detention to reduce flows entering the lower portion of the Watershed.

The lower portion of the Watershed, upstream from Sand Creek (38.31 sq. mi.), is comprised of level lowlands that are characteristic of the Central Valley. Elevations range from 200 to 500 feet above sea level. Since most of the Watershed's residential population resides in this region, the Plan focuses on potential projects in this area. Sand Creek, and other tributary areas downstream from Sand Creek, add an additional 172 square miles.



Figure 2-1. Cottonwood Creek Watershed



Figure 2-2. Cottonwood Creek Watershed Natural Habitat Boundaries



Figure 2-3. Cottonwood Creek Watershed Political Boundaries



Figure 2-4. Cottonwood Creek Watershed Service-Area Boundaries

2.3 WATER QUALITY PRIORITIES

The Watershed is not currently subject to any TMDLs, nor does it contribute to any receiving water bodies on the State of California's Clean Water Act Section 303(d) impaired water body list. However, in order to maintain a standard of surface water quality in the Tulare Lake Basin, a set of specific water quality objectives were outlined by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board in the Water Quality Control Plan for the Tulare Lake Basin, Second Edition (Water Quality Control Plan). These objectives are outlined in the Water Quality Control Plan as follows:

Ammonia: Waters shall not contain un-ionized ammonia in amounts which adversely affect beneficial uses. In no case shall the discharge of wastes cause concentrations of un-ionized ammonia (NH3) to exceed 0.025 milligrams per liter (mg/L; as N) in receiving waters.

Bacteria: In waters designated REC-1, the fecal coliform concentration—based on a minimum of not less than five samples for any 30-day period—shall not exceed a geometric mean of 200 per 100 milliliter (mL), nor shall more than 10 percent of the total number of samples taken during any 30-day period exceed 400 per 100 mL.

Biostimulatory Substances: Waters shall not contain biostimulatory substances in concentrations that promote aquatic growths to the extent that such growths cause nuisance or adversely affect beneficial uses.

Chemical Constituents: Waters shall not contain chemical constituents in concentrations that adversely affect beneficial uses.

Color: Waters shall be free of discoloration that causes nuisance or adversely affects beneficial uses.

Dissolved Oxygen: Waste discharges shall not cause the monthly median dissolved oxygen concentrations — in the main water mass at centroid of flow of streams and above the thermocline in lakes — to fall below 85 percent of saturation concentration, and the 95-percentile concentration to fall below 75 percent of saturation concentration.

Floating Material: Waters shall not contain floating material, including, but not limited to: solids, liquids, foams, and scum, in concentrations that cause nuisance or adversely affect beneficial uses.

Oil and Grease: Waters shall not contain oils, greases, waxes, or other materials in concentrations that: cause nuisance, result in a visible film or coating on the surface of the water or on objects in the water, or otherwise adversely affect beneficial uses.

pH: The pH of water shall not be depressed below 6.5, raised above 8.3, or changed at any time more than 0.3 units from normal ambient pH.

Pesticides: Waters shall not contain pesticides in concentrations that adversely affect beneficial uses.

Radioactivity: Radionuclides shall not be present in concentrations that are harmful to human, plant, animal, or aquatic life; or which result in the accumulation of radionuclides in the food web to an extent that presents a hazard to human, plant, animal, or aquatic life.

Salinity: Waters shall be maintained as close to natural concentrations of dissolved matter as is reasonable, considering careful use of the water resources.

Sediment: The suspended sediment load and suspended sediment discharge rate of waters shall not be altered in such a manner as to cause nuisance or adversely affect beneficial uses.

Settleable Material: Waters shall not contain substances in concentrations that result in the deposition of material that causes nuisance or adversely affects beneficial uses.

Tastes and Odors: Waters shall not contain taste- or odor-producing substances in concentrations that cause nuisance, adversely affect beneficial uses, or impart undesirable tastes or odors to fish flesh or other edible products of aquatic origin or to domestic or municipal water supplies.

2.4 SURFACE WATER AND GROUNDWATER RESOURCES

Plan describes the general quality and identification of surface and ground water resources within the watershed (preferably provided in a geographic information system shape file).

Surface-water supplies tributary to, or imported for use within, the Watershed are inadequate to support the present level of agricultural and other development. Therefore, ground water resources in the valley portion of the Watershed are being mined to provide additional water to supply demand.

The Kaweah/St. Johns River, which drains from the west face of the Sierra Nevada Mountains, is of excellent quality and provides the bulk of the surface water supply from areas nearby the Tulare Lake Basin. Imported surface supplies—which are also of good quality—enter the Watershed from the Friant-Kern Canal. Adequate control to protect the quality of these resources is essential, as imported surface water supplies contribute nearly half of the increase of salts occurring within the Watershed.

Buena Vista Lake and Tulare Lake—natural depressions on the valley floor—receive floodwater from Cottonwood Creek during times of heavy runoff. During extremely heavy runoff, flood flows may leave the Tulare Lake Basin through the Fresno Slough.

3.1 LAND USE AND ACTIVITIES

The majority of the land-use type within the Watershed consists of agricultural and open area. The open land use consists of a combination of idle, native riparian vegetation, as well as urban vacant areas. The agricultural land use, which comprises approximately 43 percent of the Watershed, consists of row crops, orchards, dairies, and grazing lands. Combined urban areas of commercial, residential, and industrial use comprise a little over 2 percent of the total area within the Watershed. Table 3-1 shows land-use type present within the Watershed.

Land-Use Type	Total Acreage Present in Watershed	Percentage of Land-Use Type in Watershed
Open	104,022	54.01%
Agricultural	83,370	43.29%
Residential	3,395	1.76%
Open Water	1,270	0.66%
Industrial	346	0.18%
Commercial	191	0.10%
Total	192,594	100%

Table 3-1. Land-Use Type Present in Watershed

Stein *et al.* (2007) presents a study of event mean concentration, or the average runoff concentration after a particular storm, for land-use types and indicator contaminants in Los Angeles County. Results of this study are applicable to the Watershed study area because water quality is discussed from the perspective of land use.

As shown on Table 2 in Stein et al. (2007), included herein as Table 3-2, bacteria presence in storm-water runoff from agricultural sites is significantly higher than from other land-use types. Due to the large agricultural land use in the study area, it is expected that water quality benefits of the proposed projects will have the greatest impact on bacteria loading to Cottonwood Creek.

	Mean EMC						
Land-Use Type (Number of Sites Sampled)	TSS	Total Copper	Total Lead	Total Zinc	Total PAHs	E. coli	Entero- cocci
	(µg/L)	(µg/L)	(µg/L)	(µg/L)	(ng/L)	(MPN/ 100mL)	(MPN/ 100mL)
High-Density Residential (4)	77.4	26.0	28.4	207.7	4.4E+03	8.2E+03	2.7E+04
Low-Density Residential (3)	105.0	29.9	6.0	87.1	1.4E+03	3.0E+04	5.5E+04
Commercial (4)	49.6	38.1	20.4	362.2	1.2E+03	1.1E+04	7.7E+04
Industrial (4)	92.2	70.3	24.1	599.1	1.5E+03	3.8E+03	2.1E+04
Agriculture (1)	112.0	32.6	7.8	242.8	8.6E+02	4.0E+04	1.2E+05
Recreational (1)	530.0	38.0	16.3	131.5	4.6E+02	5.3E+05	1.4E+05
Transportation (2)	14.5	9.8	3.3	92.6	4.8E+02	1.4E+03	8.9E+03
Open Space (2)	134.0	7.6	1.2	23.2	NA	5.4E+03	2.1E+04

 Table 3-2. Event Mean Concentration by Land-Use Type from Stein et al. (2007)

Notes: Mean EMCs of TSS, total copper, total lead, total zinc, total PAHs, *E. coli*, and enterococci at land-use sites in the Los Angeles, California region. Bolded values indicate significant differences among land-use types (p < 0.001 - 0.03).

Key: µg/L = micrograms per liter

E. coli = Escherichia coli

EMC =event mean concentration

mL = milliliter

MPN = most probable number

NA = not applicable

ng/L = nanogram per liter PAH = Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons

TSS = total suspended solids

3.2 TOTAL MAXIUMUM DAILY LOAD AND NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM COMPLIANCE

The Watershed is not currently subject to any US Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) TMDL or NPDES permit requirements. Although there are no specific TMDL or NPDES permit requirements, the Water Quality Control Plan provides specific water quality objectives in order to determine potential impacts to beneficial uses of water. While specific NPDES compliance is not mandated, Tulare County "shall continue to support the State in monitoring and enforcing provisions to control nonpoint source water pollution contained in the USEPA NPDES program as implemented by the Water Quality Control Board" (Draft Program Environmental Impact Report, 2014). The proposed projects will result in a mitigated pollutant load due to detention of runoff.

3.3 WASTE-DISCHARGE PERMIT COMPLIANCE

The proposed projects are primarily for flood control purposes and do not involve any kind of waste discharge. While specific Federal NPDES permits are not applicable for the Watershed, the Water Quality Control Plan outlines requirements for waste discharges within the set water quality objectives. The Water Quality Control Plan states that:

"Effluent limits may be established to reflect what is necessary to achieve water quality objectives, or, if more stringent, will reflect the technology-based standard for the type of discharge being regulated. The objectives in this plan do not require improvement over naturally occurring background concentrations. Water quality objectives contained in this plan, and any State or Federally promulgated objectives applicable to the Tulare Lake Basin, apply to the main water mass" (Regional Water Quality Control Board, 2015).

Additionally, the Water Quality Control Plan notes that waste disposal from land developments and farms—which comprise the majority of the land-use activities in the Watershed—must conform to the State Water Board's Water Quality Control Policy for Siting, Design, Operation, and Maintenance of Onsite Wastewater Treatment Systems (OWTS Policy). New developments must consider collection systems and should connect to an existing collection and treatment system when possible.

This page left blank intentionally.

Section 4 Organization, Coordination, and Collaboration

This section describes processes and activities that were used to facilitate stakeholder and public participation and communication during development of the Plan. Throughout Plan development, Tulare County coordinated and collaborated with a number of local agencies and organizations, including domestic and agricultural water providers, nongovernmental organizations (NGO), IRWM groups, and regulatory agencies. The County also solicited broad public and stakeholder input, which was used to identify projects and inform Plan development.

4.1 LOCAL AGENCIES

Local agencies and nongovernmental organizations were consulted in Plan development.

The Plan was developed by Tulare County's Resource Management Agency (RMA), in coordination with local agencies that benefit from projects that use storm water as a resource. A brief description of the County and other local agencies is provided below.

4.1.1 Tulare County

Centrally located within the State, Tulare County is situated in a geographically diverse region. The County is an area of 4,863 sq. mi., where Sierra Nevada mountain peaks rise to more than 14,000 feet in its eastern half. Meanwhile, the extensively cultivated and very fertile valley floor in the western half, has allowed Tulare County to become the top producer of agricultural commodities in the United States. The County is growing, with a current population of 451,977 residents.

The Cottonwood Creek Watershed is located wholly within the County and includes the unincorporated communities of Cutler, East Orosi, Ivanhoe, and Orosi; the hamlets of Monson, Seville, and Yettem; and the Patterson Tract, an area viewed as a neighborhood within the Urban Area Boundaries of the City of Visalia¹. Within the Watershed boundaries, the County is responsible for land-use planning and oversees compliance with the municipal separate storm-sewer systems' storm-water permit in urbanized unincorporated areas. The County also maintains public storm water infrastructure in the communities of Orosi and Cutler. Agricultural storm water discharges are regulated separately by the California State Water Resources Control Board.

The County is governed by the five-member Board of Supervisors, with each supervisor representing one of the County's five districts. The Board of Supervisors serve on the

¹ 2030 Tulare County General Plan, SB 244 Disadvantaged Communities Assessment Report (2015)

Tulare County Flood Control District (District), a governing body developed to provide oversight and management of flood management in the region. This governing body is advised by the Tulare County Flood Control Commission (Commission), a sevenmember panel appointed by the Board. Implementation of actions approved by the District are conducted by the RMA, an entity founded in 1996 when the County's Public Works, Planning, and Community Development/Redevelopment Divisions were merged. Today, there are three branches of the RMA which serve the unincorporated communities of the County: Public Works, Fiscal Services, and Planning and Economic Development.

Key decisions regarding the Plan were discussed at regularly scheduled, public meetings of the District and the Commission. These meetings also served as a venue for members of the public to provide input on the Plan and its identified projects.

4.1.2 Other Local Agencies

The following entries describe other local agencies in the Cottonwood Creek Watershed and their applicable contributions to this plan.

4.1.2.1 Water Service Providers

There are a multitude of agencies in the Watershed that provide domestic and irrigation water supply and wastewater services. These include the County, water districts, special districts, and for-profit companies. Table 4-1 provides a list of domestic water suppliers and waste water services. Irrigation water is provided by Alta Irrigation District, Orange Cove Irrigation District, Stone Corral Irrigation District, Ivanhoe Irrigation District, and St. Johns Water District.

Table 4-1. Domestic Water Services Providers in the Cottonwood CreekWatershed

Agency	Services Provided	Communities Served in the Watershed
California Water Service, Visalia District	Water	Patterson Tract
Tulare County ¹	Water and wastewater	Yettem, Seville ⁴
Cutler-Orosi Joint Powers Wastewater Authority ²	Wastewater	Cutler, Orosi, East Orosi, Yettem, Seville
Cutler PUD	Water and wastewater	Cutler
East Orosi CSD	Water and wastewater	East Orosi
Ivanhoe PUD	Water and wastewater	Ivanhoe
Orosi PUD	Water and wastewater	Orosi
Patterson Tract CSD ³	Water	Patterson Tract

Key:

CSA = county service area

CSD = community services district

PUD = public utilities district

Notes:

¹The Tulare County Service Area #1 serves multiple zones of benefit, including the Yettem Zone of Benefits and Seville Zone of Benefit.

² The Cutler-Orosi Joint Powers Wastewater Authority was formed in March 1980 under an agreement between the Cutler PUD and Orosi PUD for the purposes of operating a wastewater treatment and disposal facility.

³ Patterson Tract Community Services District only serves a portion of the census-designated place Patterson Tract. Patterson Tract Community Services District serves the east side of Road 124, Lincoln Road, and Grandview Road from Avenue 324 to Avenue 328. The remaining area of Patterson Tract is served by other water service providers or private wells.

⁴Tulare County took receivership of Seville Water Company on April 18, 2009, pursuant to County resolution No. 2009-0312. Receivership extended through June 30, 2019, pursuant to Superior Court of the State of California, County of Tulare, Case No. 09-233080.

The County consulted local water and wastewater service providers at two public/stakeholder meetings held in July and September of 2017. County staff presented information and solicited input on the Plan and its projects. Feedback collected at the workshops informed development of the Plan. Local water providers also participated in development of the Plan through locally formed Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSA) and IRWM groups, described below.

4.1.2.2 Flood Management Agencies

Flood management in the Watershed is overseen by the District. The District directed development of the Plan through RMA, with advice by the Commission. The District is an independent special district with powers established under the Tulare County Flood District Act of 1969 (Cal. Stat. 2218; Cal. Water Code App. 111-1 esq.). Duties of the District include: planning, designing, constructing, and maintaining flood control projects within the District; coordinating with Federal and State flood management agencies; maintaining channels, pumps, and ponding basins; administering the FEMA National Flood Insurance Program in Tulare County, providing flood zone information, and performing flood control investigations.

4.1.2.3 Groundwater Sustainability Agencies

The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 (SGMA) requires governments and water agencies in high- and medium-priority groundwater basins—as defined by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR)—to form locally controlled GSAs and to develop groundwater sustainability plans (GSP). GSAs must bring groundwater basins into sustainability within 20 years of implementing their GSPs.

The Cottonwood Creek Watershed overlies two subbasins of the larger San Joaquin Valley Basin: the Kaweah Subbasin (DWR Bulletin 118, 5-022.11) and the Kings Subbasin (DWR Bulletin 118, 5-22.08). Pursuant to the requirements of SGMA, three GSAs have formed in the Kaweah Subbasin, and seven GSAs have formed in the Kings Subbasin. As shown in Figure 4-1, three GSAs have boundaries in the Watershed: the Greater Kaweah GSA, East Kaweah GSA, and Kings River East GSA. One GSA — the Mid-Kaweah GSA — can receive a groundwater recharge benefit via Plan projects. Table 4-2 lists member agencies for each GSA.



Figure 4-1. Cottonwood Creek Groundwater Sustainability Agency Boundaries
GSA	GSA Member Agencies	
Greater Kaweah GSA	Tulare County, Kings County WD, Lakeside Irrigation WD, St. Johns WD, California Water Service	
East Kaweah GSA	Tulare County, City of Lindsay, Exeter ID, Lindmore ID, Stone Corral ID, Wutchumna Water Company, Ivanhoe ID, Lindsay-Strathmore ID, Sentinel Butte Mutual Water Company	
Kings River East GSA	Tulare County, City of Dinuba, City of Orange Cove, City of Reedley, Alta ID, Hills Valley ID, Kings River WD, Orange Cove ID, Tri-Valley WD, County of Fresno, Cutler PUD, East Orosi PUD, London CSD, Orosi PUD, Sultana CSD	
Mid-Kaweah GSA	City of Tulare, City of Visalia, Tulare ID	

Table 4-2. Groundwater Sustainability Agencies, Member Agencies

Key:

CSD = community services district

ID = irrigation district PUD = public utilities district

POD = public utilities di WD = water district

County staff presented the Plan and storm water projects at regularly scheduled Kaweah Subbasin Management Team and Kings River East GSA public meetings. Feedback provided by the GSAs' representatives at those meetings was incorporated into the Plan. The storm water projects identified in the Plan all provide an additional benefit of recharging the local groundwater basins. Therefore, the County will coordinate closely with Greater Kaweah GSA, East Kaweah GSA, and Kings River East GSA during project implementation and monitoring.

4.2 NONGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

Plan includes identification of nonprofit organizations working on storm water and dry weather resource planning or management in the watershed.

Tulare County partnered with NGOs to provide assistance in effectively engaging disadvantaged and rural communities in the Watershed. A key County partner to engage with disadvantaged and rural communities in the Watershed is -Help Enterprises (SHE), a nonprofit community-development organization whose mission is to work with low-income families to build and sustain healthy homes and communities. SHE has a long history of working with public agencies and community members in the Watershed on a variety of water issues and projects. Two meetings focused on engaging disadvantaged communities in the Watershed were held during development of the Plan.

On July 11, 2017, Resource Management Agency staff were invited to present information on water quality improvement plans for the Cottonwood Creek basin and watershed during a SHE community meeting focused on the Seville-Yettem Water Project. Held in at the Stone Corral Elementary School in Seville, the meeting provided County staff to raise awareness of water quality impacts associated with urban runoff and describe multi-benefit projects being developed to enhance water supply and water quality goals. Materials for both meetings were provided in English and Spanish, and SHE led circulation of the fliers to area communities. The second meeting was held Sept. 14, 2017, in the community of Ivanhoe and focused on engaging area residents in development of Plan development. Meeting fliers were developed in English and Spanish and distributed by mail and email to area residents. As part of this effort, County staff contacted SHE staff to coordinate outreach to potential stakeholders. Copies of meeting fliers are available in Appendix A.

4.3 INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT GROUPS

Plan includes description of the existing integrated regional water management group(s) implementing an integrated regional water management plan.

The Cottonwood Creek Watershed is covered by two IRWM groups: the Kings Basin IRWM group and the Kaweah River Basin IRWM group. These IRWM planning areas are illustrated in Figure 4-2. This section describes each of these IRWM groups and how they were consulted in the development of the Plan.

The final Plan will be incorporated as appendices to the updated Kings Basin IRWM Plan and Kaweah River Basin IRWM Plan. Boundaries of the Kings and Kaweah River Basin IRWM Plans follow, in part, the meander of Cottonwood Creek. As such, the Plan watershed overlaps portions of both IRWM boundaries. This Plan will be submitted to the Kings and Kaweah River Basin IRWM Plans for incorporation. This overlap section of the two basins stems from a request of the Kings County Water District that all of its service area be included in the Kings Basin IRWM area². The Kings County Water District overlays most of the Lakeside Irrigation District, whose surface water supply portfolio includes the Kaweah River, a system that collects runoff from the Cottonwood Creek watershed.

4.3.1 Kings Basin IRWM Group

The Kings Basin IRWM group is managed by the Upper Kings Basin Integrated Water Management Authority (commonly known as the Kings Basin Water Authority). The Kings Basin Water Authority's IRWM region consists of the geographic areas under the jurisdiction of Water Authority members and includes the majority of the Kings Subbasin. The total land area of the IRWM region is 610,000 acres, with an irrigated land area of about 480,000 acres³. This IRWM region also includes regional and smaller local water agencies spanning parts of three counties: Fresno, Kings, and Tulare. The urban spheres of influence and current city boundaries are important because the water districts and urban entities need to work together to ensure compatiblity and consistency between the prevailing land-use and water-supply plans for the area. The

² Email correspondence, Soua Lee, Associate Resource Analyst, Kings River Conservation District, 9/24/18 ³ Kings Basin Water Authority website: <u>http://www.kingsbasinauthority.org/about-us/</u>

IRWM region includes most of the Kings Subbasin and small portions of the Delta-Mendota, Kaweah, and Tulare Lake Subbasins.

Tulare County consulted closely with the Kings Basin Water Authority during development of the Plan and discussed the Plan at IRWM plan development meetings. During these meetings, SHE and consultant staff discussed both the Plan and IRWM plans, and they solicited public input on identifying multi-benefit storm water projects.

4.3.2 Kaweah River Basin IRWM Group

The Kaweah River Basin IRWM group was established in 2007 as a collaborative effort to manage all aspects of water resources in the Kaweah River Basin Region⁴. Agencies and stakeholders involved in the group include the Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District, Tulare County, Exeter Irrigation District, Lakeside Irrigation District, Tulare Irrigation District; and the cities of Visalia, Tulare, Lindsay, and Farmersville. The objectives of the IRWM group include groundwater management, water supply, water quality, flood control, and ecosystem restoration.

The Kaweah River Basin IRWM group is currently in the process of updating its IRWM Plan. While the IRWM Plan is being updated, the group was awarded funding in 2014 to allow participating agencies to continue meeting monthly to oversee the update. The updated IRWM plan is anticipated to be adopted in Summer 2019. Tulare County is a signatory member of the Kaweah River Basin IRWM group and has discussed the Plan at public IRWM meetings. The County will continue to leverage the IRWM plan process to educate and engage stakeholders about the Plan and to coordinate Plan implementation activities.

⁴ Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District website: <u>http://www.kdwcd.com/water-resources/</u>



Figure 4-2. Cottonwood Creek IRWMP Boundaries

4.4 REGULATORY AGENCIES

The County developed the Plan in consultation with the State Water Board and in consideration of other local, regional, and statewide planning documents. The County may coordinate with additional regulatory and permitting agencies during Plan implementation, to obtain the necessary permits and approvals for project construction.

4.4.1 State Water Resources Control Board

The State Water Board was the primary state agency consulted during development of the Plan. Tulare County staff met with the State Water Board in March 2016 to discuss the proposed Plan and the County's intention to apply for Proposition 1 Storm Water Grant Program funds.

On July 7, 2016, the County applied to receive Storm Water Grant Program for funding of the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Retention Project (later renamed the Juvenile Detention Facility–Cottonwood Creek Project). The County was notified on August 28, 2018 that \$1,204,310 in grant funding was conditionally awarded to the project. The County will continue to keep the State Water Board informed of the status of the Plan and its project implementation milestones.

4.4.2 Relationship with Other Planning Documents

The Plan was developed in consideration of local, regional, and statewide planning efforts around storm water and integrated water management. Tulare County's General Plan was last updated in 2012, and it provides a comprehensive, long-term plan for future land use and development in the County through the year 2030. Table 4-3 provides a list of General Plan policies that address storm water. The Plan was also developed in accordance with the community plans for Cutler-Orosi, East Orosi, and Ivanhoe; and the hamlet plans for Monson, Seville, and Yettem. The Plan, and the four projects it identifies, address the County's objectives to increase storm water retention/detention, implement multipurpose storm water/flood control projects, and to improve storm water infrastructure in unincorporated communities and hamlets.

Other relevant regional and local planning documents include IRWM plans (described in Section 4.3), flood control plans, agricultural water plans, urban water management plans, climate action plans, groundwater management plans, and groundwater sustainability plans—once they are developed. Where appropriate, these plans were consulted to develop information for the Plan, identify key stakeholders, and to identify regional water quantity and quality priorities.

Public outreach and engagement activities also took into consideration recommendations outlined in the 2017 Disadvantaged Communities Infrastructure and Planning Policy Study developed by Tulare County, the Leadership Council for Justice and Accountability, and SHE.

Table 4-3. Tulare County General Plan Policies Addressing Storm Water

General Plan Policy	General Plan Policy Number
Multipurpose Flood Control Measures: The County shall encourage multipurpose flood control projects that incorporate recreation, resource conservation, preservation of natural riparian habitat, and scenic values of the County's streams, creeks, and lakes. Where appropriate, the County shall also encourage the use of flood and/or storm water retention facilities for use as groundwater recharge facilities.	HS-5.4
Storm Water Management Plans: The County shall oversee, as per Community Plan Content Table PF-2.1 and Specific Plan Content, Hamlet Plans Policy PF-3.3, and Table LU-4.3, the preparation and adoption of storm water management plans for communities and hamlets to reduce flood risk, protect soils from erosion, control storm water, and minimize impacts on existing drainage facilities, and develop funding mechanisms as a part of the Community Plan and Hamlet Plan process.	PFS-4.1
Site Improvements: The County shall ensure that new development in UDBs, UABs, Community Plans, Hamlet Plans, Planned Communities, Corridor Areas, and Area Plans includes adequate storm water drainage systems. This includes adequate capture, transport, and detention/retention of storm water.	PFS-4.2
Development Requirements: The County shall encourage project designs that minimize drainage concentrations and impervious coverage, avoid floodplain areas, and where feasible, provide a natural watercourse appearance.	PFS-4.3
Storm water Retention Facilities: The County shall require on-site detention/retention facilities and velocity reducers when necessary to maintain existing (pre-development) storm flows and velocities in natural drainage systems. The County shall encourage the multipurpose design of these facilities to aid in active groundwater recharge	PFS-4.4
Detention/Retention Basins Design: The County shall require that storm water detention/retention basins be visually unobtrusive and provide a secondary use, such as recreation, when feasible.	PFS-4.5
Agency Coordination: The County shall work with the Army Corps of Engineers and other appropriate agencies to develop storm water detention/retention facilities and recharge facilities that enhance flood protection and improve groundwater recharge.	PFS-4.6
NPDES Enforcement : The County shall continue to monitor and enforce provisions to control nonpoint source water pollution contained in the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program.	PFS-4.7
Disadvantaged Legacy Communities : Promote the extension, construction or upgrade of public water, sewer, storm water drainage and structural fire protection services to identified Disadvantaged Legacy Communities as depicted in Appendix D – Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities Assessment Report where feasible, and identify funding mechanisms that could make the extension, construction or upgrade of services and facilities to these communities and hamlets financially feasible.	LU 7.21

4.5 PUBLIC OUTREACH AND ENGAGEMENT

Plan includes identification of and coordination with agencies and organizations (including, but not limited to public agencies, nonprofit organizations, and privately-owned water utilities) that need to participate and implement their own authorities and mandates in order to address the storm water and dry weather runoff management objectives of the Plan for the targeted watershed.

Plan includes identification and discussion of public engagement efforts and community participation in Plan development.

This section describes how community participation was solicited during Plan development, including: (1) public education and public participation opportunities in consideration of major technical and policy issues related to the development and implementation of the Plan; (2) the mechanisms, processes, and milestones that were used to facilitate public participation and communication during development of the Plan; (3) the mechanisms to engage communities in project design and implementation; (4) the strategies used to engage disadvantaged and climate-vulnerable communities, and California Native American tribes within the Plan boundaries, with ongoing tracking of their involvement in the planning process. Activities to further engage stakeholders and the public during Plan development and project implementation are described in Section 8.

4.5.1 Community Participation

Community participation was provided for in the Plan development.

Tulare County and partner agencies—such as SHE—implemented the following strategies to provide opportunities for stakeholders and the general public to participate in the development of the Plan:

- Web page (<u>http://www.tularecounty.ca.gov/swrp</u>): The County maintains a page on its main website with information on the Plan. Information posted on this web page includes a description of the Plan and projects, upcoming workshops and public meetings, available reports, and other materials. The web page also includes an electronic form for stakeholders and members of the public to submit comments regarding the Plan and its projects.
- *Public meetings:* During development of the Plan, County staff provided a series of presentations on the Plan, to both inform the public and to solicit public and stakeholder input on the Plan and its projects. These presentations were made at both specialized and existing public meetings in locations throughout the Cottonwood Creek Watershed and included the following:
 - July 11, 2017, SWRP public meeting at Stone Corral Elementary School, 15590 Avenue 383, Seville, CA

- September 14, 2017, SWRP Public Meeting at Ivanhoe Elementary School, 16030 Avenue 332, Ivanhoe, CA
- June 6, 2018, SWRP and Kings Basin IRWM Plan Public Meeting at Tulare County Resource Management Agency, 5961 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia, CA
- August 9, 2018, SWRP and Kings Basin IRWM Plan Public Meeting at Tulare County Resource Management Agency, 5961 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia, CA
- September 19, 2018, Kaweah Subbasin Management Team Meeting at Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District Offices, 2975 Farmersville Rd, Farmersville, CA
- September 20, 2018, Kings River East GSA Board of Directors Meeting at Dinuba City Council Chambers, 405 E. El Monte Way, Dinuba, CA
- September 28, 2018, Tulare County Flood Control District Commission at Tulare County Resource Management Agency, 5961 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia, CA
- October 9, 2018, Tulare County Board of Supervisors at Tulare County Board of Supervisors Chambers, 2800 W. Burrel Ave., Visalia, CA
- October 30, 2018, Tulare County Flood Control District at Tulare County Board of Supervisors Chambers, 2800 W. Burrel Ave., Visalia, CA

Public meetings were promoted via email notifications, web postings, fliers, direct mailers to residents, and automated message phone calls in partnership with local school districts. The County worked closely with SHE to disseminate meeting information to residents in rural and disadvantaged communities. To ensure participation from a diverse stakeholder group, specialized public meetings were held in community spaces, such as schools, and Spanish-language interpretation was provided. Public comments provided at the meetings were recorded by County staff and used in the development of the Plan.

- Public comment on the Plan: The draft Plan underwent a public comment period where notice of availability of the draft plan was widely disseminated. It was publicized through announcements on the Plan web page and notification to those on the mailing list described below. The public comment period was also announced at the Tulare County Board of Supervisors meeting on October 9, 2018. Two comments were received by October 12, 2018. Appendix B includes copies of those comments received.
- *Email notification list*: An email notification list was developed for the Plan. Stakeholders and interested members were notified of the Plan's release and they were invited to provide comments. This list (See Appendix C) will be managed by the County and periodically updated for future outreach activities pertinent to the Plan.

• *Distribution of the Plan*: The public draft Plan was posted on the County's website and distributed to affected agencies, local entities, regional organizations, and California Native American tribes in the Watershed.

5.1 METRICS-BASED ANALYSIS

The Plan uses a metrics-based analysis to quantify, compare, and prioritize projects and their ability to meet the Plan's objectives of reducing flood flows, to improve water quality, augment local water supplies, and to restore habitat in the Watershed. As specified in Table 3 of the Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines (California State Water Resources Control Board, 2015⁵), the flood management benefits that decrease the flood risk, by reducing the runoff rate, are measured in cubic feet per second (cfs), Water quality benefits that provide treatment of runoff are given in percent load reduction. Water supply benefits are given in acre-feet per year, and environmental benefits from habitat restoration are given in acres. Each project identified in the Plan meets at least two objectives listed in the 2015 Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines.

The Plan used a subbasin-wide approach and considered available geospatial information in the creation of a Hydrologic Engineering Center Hydrologic Modeling System (HEC-HMS) model that was used to determine the benefits from each project. The performance of each project was examined both independently from the other projects, and together with all projects implemented.

HEC-HMS is designed to simulate the precipitation-runoff processes of dendritic watershed systems. It is designed to be applicable in a wide range of geographic areas for solving a broad range of problems. This includes large river basin water supply and flood hydrology to small urban or natural water runoff. Hydrographs produced by the program can be used directly or in conjunction with other software for studies of water availability, urban drainage, flow forecasting, future urbanization impact, reservoir spillway design, flood damage reduction, floodplain regulation, wetlands hydrology, and systems operation (Scharffenberg 2013).

5.1.1 Water Quality Project Analysis

The Water Quality Project benefits from projects included in the Plan are quantified using an analysis that determines percent load reduction based on the amount of runoff volume captured. A mechanistic growth model is used to estimate the pollutant mass load carried by the runoff using two key assumptions.

First, the model assumes a finite amount of mass available for mobilization in a given storm. The quantity of mobilized mass from the runoff volume due to a 50-year return

5

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/swgp/docs/draft_guidelines_120315 .pdf

period was assumed to be the upper limit, and all subsequent mass volumes were normalized to this quantity. The 50-year return period was used because the simulated project volume capture for both the 50- and 100-year return period storm were equal.

Second, the model utilized the concept of the "first flush." The first-flush concept is defined as "the emission of a greater fraction of constituent mass or higher concentration in the early part of the runoff volume" (Kang, 2005). In order to simulate first-flush occurrence within each return period, a mechanistic growth model is used to determine the corresponding mass mobilized based on the runoff volumes generated from the hydrologic model. In determining an appropriate growth rate, it was assumed that 80 percent of the mass available for mobilization would be captured in the first 30 percent of the runoff volume (Kang, 2005).

The mechanistic growth model is described by the following equation:

Percent of Total Mass =
$$1 - \exp(-c[Percent of Total Runoff])$$

Whereas c is the growth parameter equal to 5.36. The growth parameter was determined by setting percent of total mass to 80 percent and percent of total runoff to 30 percent based on Kang (2005).

Figure 5-1 shows the mechanistic growth model used to determine the normalized mass volume as a function of the normalized runoff volume. Increasing runoff volume yields a greater mobilized mass, however the amount of mass that can ultimately be mobilized is limited by the total mass available, illustrated by the asymptotic behavior of the mechanistic growth model. Estimation of mobilized mass resulting from the runoff captured by the proposed projects provides a method to determine the percent load reduction and consequent receiving water quality benefit. This analysis is repeated to determine the percent load reduction of constituents each project would yield for each modeled return period.



Figure 5-1. Mechanistic Growth Model for Water Quality Analysis

Water quality benefits from these projects directly impact the sediment and organic matter delivered to Cottonwood Creek. Additional details regarding reduction in delivery, in terms of percent load reduction, is discussed in Section 6.5.2.

5.1.2 Storm Water Capture and Use Project Analysis

The benefits of Storm Water Capture and Use projects included in the Plan are quantified using a HEC-HMS model to determine the runoff within the Watershed. The analysis includes storms of the 2-, 5-, 10-, 25-, 50-, and 100-year return period to determine runoff volume. The model of the Watershed includes all projects as represented as accurately as possible, given the available information for detention basin sizing, weir elevations, and existing channel sizes and conditions. The Plan includes projects designed for the capture and infiltration of storm water, while others are only for the detention and controlled release of flood flows. The volumes of capture and infiltration are determined by HEC-HMS in acre-feet (AF).

5.1.3 Water Supply and Flood Management Project Analysis

Analysis was performed using HEC-HMS to determine the effectiveness of each project proposed in this Plan to provide flood management benefits.

The water supply and flood management benefits of the projects included in the Plan are quantified using a HEC-HMS model to determine the runoff volume within the Watershed. The analysis includes storms of the 2, 5, 10, 25, 50, and 100-year return period to determine runoff volume. The model of the Watershed includes all projects as represented as accurately as possible, given the available information for detention-basin sizing, weir elevations, and existing channel sizes and conditions. Some of the projects included in this Plan are designed for the flood management and reduction of

volume and peak flows in the Watershed. The volumes of reduced flows determined in HEC-HMS are quantified in AF, and the reduction in peak flows are determined in HEC-HMS and quantified in cubic feet per second (cfs).

5.1.4 Environmental and Community-Benefit Analysis

The environmental and community benefits of the projects included in the Plan are quantified in feet of creek channel realigned. Much of Cottonwood Creek and its tributaries are channelized ditches and canals that are used for irrigation or drainage of runoff. The JDF Complex Project includes realignment of approximately 8,500 feet of Cottonwood Creek and features a natural meander and associated riparian habitat. No other projects identified in this Plan have been formulated to incorporate realignment to mimic natural meandering.

Section 6 Project Identification and Prioritization

The Plan identifies four projects within the Watershed. These projects are identified in in the list below and on Figure 6-1.

- Juvenile Detention Facility Cottonwood Creek Project (JDF Complex Project)
- Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project (Yettem Project)
- Upper Detention/Retention Project (UDR Project)
- Robles Lomas Ranch Detention Project (Robles Project)

6.1 OPPORTUNITIES TO AUGMENT LOCAL WATER SUPPLY

Three of the identified projects within the Watershed would provide opportunities to augment local water supply though groundwater recharge for beneficial use of storm water.



Figure 6-1. Cottonwood Creek Project Locations

6.1.1 Juvenile Detention Facility – Cottonwood Creek Project

This project is multi-faceted and includes: the development of two retention basins, a flood easement for detention/retention on adjacent agricultural land, a berm on the south portion of the creek through the project area to provide flood protection, and realignment of approximately 8,500 feet of creek bottom to restore a natural meandering creek. The two retention basins will capture storm water for infiltration, and they are designed to begin taking water at different return intervals. The groundwater overflow site will take water during large storms and hold that water for infiltration. Table 6-1 shows the amount of captured volume expected for the 2, 5, 10, 25, 50, and 100-year return period storms. It is assumed that all of this volume would be captured and infiltrated due to low evaporative losses during the winter time when these storms and flooding events typically occur.

Return Period	Basin 1 Runoff Captured (AF)	Basin 2 Runoff Captured (AF)	Overflow Runoff Captured (AF)	Total Volume Captured at JDF (AF)
2-Year	19.5	0	0	19.5
5-Year	70.3	850	425	1,275
10-Year	70.3	850	425	1,275
25-Year	70.3	850	425	1,275
50-Year	70.3	850	425	1,275
100-Year	70.3	850	425	1,275

Table 6-1. Runoff Volume Captured and Infiltrated at the JDF Complex Project

Key: AF = acre-feet

JDF = Juvenile Detention Facility

There is no substantial historical data record in the Watershed. Therefore, a synthetic 100-year hydrologic period was simulated to determine the annual recapture for each of the detention basins in the JDF Complex Project. It is assumed that 90 percent of the storm water captured in Basin 1 and Basin 2 will recharge the groundwater, and it is assumed that 25 percent of storm water captured in the Basin 3 overflow area will recharge annually. Table 6-2 shows the estimated annual infiltration for each of the detention basins, and the combined total.

Table 6-2. Estimated Annual Infiltration at the JDF Complex Project Site

	Groundwater Recharge Basin 1 (AFY)	Groundwater Recharge Basin 2 (AFY)	Groundwater Recharge Overflow (AFY)	Total Volume Captured at JDF (AFY)
Annual Average	11.1	283	39.3	333.3

Key:

AFY = acre-feet per year

JDF = Juvenile Detention Facility

6.1.2 Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project

This project is located adjacent to the Button Ditch near the intersection of Road 144 and Avenue 384. This detention basin will temporarily detain high flows and decrease the severity of flooding in the rural community of Yettem. The project would include construction of a berm around up to 80 acres of agricultural land that the County has secured as a flood easement, to allow the capture of a maximum volume of 80 AF. The Yettem Project is not specifically designed to infiltrate water, but water will infiltrate from the project during the detention period. Table 6-3 shows the estimated annual infiltration of the Yettem Project. It is assumed that all of the volume would be captured and infiltrated due to low evaporative losses during the winter time when these storms would occur.

Table 6-3. Estimated Annual Infiltration at the Yettem-Button Ditch Flood ControlProject Site

	Total Volume Captured at Yettem Project (AFY)
Annual Average	6
Kev:	•

AFY = acre-feet per year

6.1.3 Upper Detention/Retention Project

This project is located downstream from the Friant-Kern Canal, near the intersection of Road 164 and Avenue 362. This detention/retention basin will temporarily detain high flows from Cottonwood Creek, would decrease flows downstream, and will retain a portion of water for infiltration. The project is located in Type A⁶ soils that will facilitate groundwater recharge. The project would include the construction of berms around 300 acres of agricultural land—for which the County will need to secure a flood easement—to allow the capture of a maximum volume of 300 AF of water. The UDR Project is specifically designed to infiltrate water, as the basin begins to capture water at the 5-year return period; therefore the basin will frequently have water. Table 6-4 shows the estimated annual infiltration of the UDR Project. It is assumed that all of this volume would be captured and infiltrated due to low evaporative losses during the winter time when these storms would occur.

⁶ https://www.osha.gov/dts/vtools/construction/soil_testing_fnl_eng_web_transcript.html

	Total Volume Captured at UDR Project (AFY)
Annual Average	47
Key:	

Table 6-4. Estimated Annual Infiltration at the UDR Project Site

6.2 OPPORTUNITIES FOR SOURCE CONTROL

While none of the projects identified in the Plan provide direct opportunities for source control, the identified projects do include the capture and infiltration of first-flush storm water flows in one of the detention basins for the JDF Complex Project. The benefits of this project will be quantified in Section 6.5 Opportunities to Capture, Clean, Store, and Use Storm Water. This project does not include any land-use changes, or onsite Best Management Practices (BMP).

6.3 PROJECTS THAT REESTABLISH NATURAL WATER DRAINAGE

While none of the projects identified in the Plan provide direct opportunities to reestablish natural water drainage, the identified projects do provide increased infiltration through the development of detention/retention basins. The benefits of this project are quantified in Section 6.1 Opportunities to Augment Local Water Supply.

6.4 OPPORTUNITIES TO DEVELOP, RESTORE, OR ENHANCE HABITAT

The JDF Complex Project includes the realignment of nearly 8,500 feet of Cottonwood Creek to restore the natural meandering stream. The realignment would include the creation of a four-foot-wide, low-flow channel and 10-foot overbanks on each side within the larger creek channel, allowing for the establishment of 4.7 acres of riparian habitat. Table 6-5 summarizes the habitat restoration acreages for each project.

	JDF Complex Project (Acres)	Yettem Project (Acres)	UDR Project (Acres)
Annual Average	4.7	0	0
Key:	- Detection Facility		

Table 6-5. Acres of Habitat Restoration

JDF = Juvenile Detention Facility

UDR = Upper Detention/Retention

6.5 OPPORTUNITIES TO CAPTURE, CLEAN, STORE, AND USE STORM WATER

6.5.1 Flood Management Benefits

All four projects identified in the Plan would detain or capture storm water for flood management purposes. These projects all include detention/retention basins to capture and infiltrate storm water on lands adjacent to creeks and waterways where flood easements have been acquired.

6.5.1.1 JDF Detention Facility – Cottonwood Creek (JDF Complex) Project

The JDF Complex Project is a multi-part project that includes: the development of two detention basins, a flood easement on adjacent agricultural land, a berm on the south portion of the creek through the project area to provide flood protection, and realignment of approximately 8,500 feet of the creek bottom to restore a natural meandering creek. The first detention basin is designed to take water during the first flush of 2-year return storms, with a total capacity of 70.3 AF. The second detention basins is an abandoned sand pit that has a total capacity of 779 AF. These detention basins would hold water for infiltration. The flood easement included in this project would store an estimated 425 AF of volume that would flow over the banks of the creek. Table 6-6 summarizes the decrease in volume, as well as the percent decrease in total runoff volume for the 2, 5, 10, 25, 50, and 100-year return period storms with the JDF Complex Project implemented.

Return Period	JDF Complex Project Volume Captured (AF)	Percent Runoff Volume Decrease for JDF Complex Project
2-Year	19.5	50%
5-Year	1,275	76%
10-Year	1,275	34%
25-Year	1,275	17%
50-Year	1,275	12%
100-Year	1,275	9%

 Table 6-6. Runoff Volume Decrease for JDF Complex Project

Key: AF = acre-feet

JDF = Juvenile Detention Facility

6.5.1.2 Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project

The Yettem Project is located adjacent to the Button Ditch, near the intersection of Road 144 and Avenue 384. This detention basin will temporarily detain high flows and decrease the severity of flooding in the rural community of Yettem. The project would include construction of a berm around up to 80 acres of agricultural land—that the County has secured as a flood easement—to allow the capture of a maximum volume of 80 AF. Table 6-7 summarizes the decrease in volume, as well as the percent decrease in total runoff volume for the 2, 5, 10, 25, 50, and 100-year return period storms with the Yettem Project implemented.

Return Period	Yettem Project Volume Captured (AF)	Percent Runoff Volume Decrease for Yettem Project
2-Year	0	0%
5-Year	0	0%
10-Year	3.6	0.1%
25-Year	80	0.7%
50-Year	80	0.4%
100-Year	80	0.3%
Key:	•	

AF = acre-feet

In addition to reduction of runoff volume, reduction in peak flow downstream from a project will also have a flood benefit. Table 6-8 summarizes the reduction in peak flows that would occur downstream from the Yettem Project.

 Table 6-8. Peak Discharge Decrease Downstream from the Yettem Project

Return Period	Baseline Peak Discharge (cfs)	Yettem Project Peak Discharge (cfs)	Percent Decrease in Peak Flow for Yettem Project
2-Year	0	0	0%
5-Year	295	295	0%
10-Year	754	743	1%
25-Year	1,758	1,656	6%
50-Year	2,446	2,446	0%
100-Year	3,022	3,022	0%

Key:

cfs = cubic feet per second

6.5.1.3 Upper Detention/Retention Project

The UDR Project is located downstream from the Friant-Kern Canal, near the intersection of Road 164 and Avenue 362. This detention basin will temporarily detain high flows in Cottonwood Creek, and would decrease flows downstream. The detention basin is located in Type A soils that will facilitate groundwater recharge. The project would include the construction of berms around 300 acres of agricultural land—that the County plans to secure as a flood easement—to allow the capture of a maximum volume of 300 AF of water. Table 6-9 summarizes the decrease in volume, as well as the percent decrease in total runoff volume, for the 2, 5, 10, 25, 50, and 100-year return period storms with the UDR Project implemented.

Return Period	UDR Project Volume Captured (AF)	Percent Runoff Volume Decrease for UDR Project
2-Year	0	0%
5-Year	18	1%
10-Year	225	4%
25-Year	300	2%
50-Year	300	2%
100-Year	300	1%

Table 6-9. Runoff Volume Decrease for UDR Projec	t
--	---

Key: AF = acre-feet

UDR = Upper Detention/Retention

In addition to reduction of runoff volume, reduction in peak flow downstream from a project will also have a flood benefit. Table 6-10 summarizes the reduction in peak flows that would occur downstream from the UDR Project.

 Table 6-10. Peak Discharge Decrease Downstream from UDR Project

Return Period	Baseline Peak Discharge (cfs)	UDR Project Peak Discharge (cfs)	Percent Decrease in Peak Flow for UDR Project
2-Year	345	344	0%
5-Year	1,750	1,698	3%
10-Year	2,882	2,574	11%
25-Year	5,308	4,787	10%
50-Year	8,166	7,263	11%
100-Year	11,994	10,742	10%
Key:	at par second		

cfs = cubic feet per second UDR = Upper Detention/Retention

6.5.1.4 Robles Lomas Ranch Detention Project

The Robles Lomas Ranch Detention (Robles) Project was first identified in the Tulare County Flood Plan (Tulare County 1971). The project includes an approximately 60-foot tall detention dam that would store approximately 5,000 AF. The detention dam would include a single 6-foot diameter culvert that will evacuate the reservoir, limiting the releases to less than 1,000 cfs. The detention dam will have a 200-foot long spillway at the top of the roller compacted concrete dam that will allow larger storms to pass. The Robles Lomas Ranch detention project will not store water for capture and infiltration but it will reduce peak flows downstream in Cottonwood Creek. Table 6-11 shows the decrease in peak discharge downstream from the proposed detention dam. Table 6-12 shows the decrease in peak discharge at the outlet of the Watershed.

Table 6-11. Peak Discharge Decrease Downstream from the Robles Project

Return Period	Baseline Peak Discharge (cfs)	Robles Project Peak Discharge (cfs)	Percent Decrease in Peak Flow for Robles Project
2-Year	351	325	7%
5-Year	1,625	691	58%
10-Year	2,530	833	67%
25-Year	4,254	1,015	76%
50-Year	6,596	4,723	28%
100-Year	9,802	6,526	34%

Key:

cfs = cubic feet per second

Table 6-12. Peak Discharge Decrease for Robles Lomas Ranch Project atWatershed Outlet

Return Period	Baseline Peak Discharge at Watershed Outlet (cfs)	Robles Project Peak Discharge at Watershed Outlet (cfs)	Percent Decrease in Peak Flow for Robles Project at Watershed Outlet
2-Year	311	304	2%
5-Year	1,963	1,511	23%
10-Year	3,161	3,301	-4%
25-Year	8,899	5,543	38%
50-Year	13,449	8,000	41%
100-Year	18,781	13,609	28%

Key:

cfs = cubic feet per second

6.5.2 Water Quality Benefits

The volume captured by the three identified projects would result in water quality benefits demonstrated by a percentage of pollutant mass load reduction for Cottonwood Creek.

6.5.2.1 JDF Detention Facility – Cottonwood Creek Project

The JDF Complex Project has features specifically designed for water quality improvement in the Watershed. The 28-acre-foot water quality retention basin is designed to begin taking water during the 2-year return period storm. The storm water retention basin begins taking water during the 5-year storm. These retention basins would have a water quality benefit by diverting a portion of the runoff for a given storm event. Table 6-13 presents the pollutant mass load reduction for the JDF Complex Project, quantified using the Water Quality Project Analysis methodology described in previous sections.

Return Period	JDF Complex Project Volume Captured (AF)	JDF Complex Project Normalized Volume Captured (AF)	Percent Load Reduction for JDF Complex Project
2-Year	28	0.001	54%
5-Year	90	0.005	21%
10-Year	801	0.043	56%
25-Year	2486	0.132	67%
50-Year	2761	0.147	55%
100-Year	2761	0.147	38%

 Table 6-13. Percent Load Reduction for JDF Complex Project

Key: AF = AF

JDF = Juvenile Detention Facility

6.5.2.2 Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project

The Yettem Project basin will reduce severity of flooding in addition to improving water quality. This project will reduce agricultural runoff, as the basin is located in a predominately agricultural setting. Table 6-14 presents the pollutant mass load reduction for the Yettem Project detention basin.

 Table 6-14. Percent Load Reduction for Yettem Project

Return Period	Yettem Project Volume Captured (AF)	tem Project Volume otured (AF)	
2-Year	0	0	0%
5-Year	0	0	0%
10-Year	3.6	0.00019	0.4%
25-Year	80	0.00426	3%
50-Year	80	0.00426	2%
100-Year	80	0.00426	1%
Key:		•	

AF = acre-feet

6.5.2.3 Upper Detention/Retention Project

The Upper Detention/Retention Basin decreases flows downstream and will facilitate groundwater recharge. The project would reduce the runoff volume and the resulting mass loading, capturing a maximum of 300 AF of water. Table 6-15 presents the pollutant mass load reduction for the UDR Project.

Return Period	UDR Project Volume Captured (AF)	UDR Project Normalized Volume Captured (AF)	Percent Load Reduction for UDR Project
2-Year	0	0	0%
5-Year	18	0.001	5%
10-Year	225	0.012	21%
25-Year	300	0.016	12%
50-Year	300	0.016	8%
100-Year	300	0.016	5%

Table 6-15. Percent Load Reduction for Upper Detention/Retention Basin

Key:

AF = acre-feet UDR = Upper Dentention/Retention

6.6 DESIGN CRITERIA AND BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT

This Plan does not include design criteria and BMPs for new development and redevelopment.

6.7 PROJECT PRIORITIZATION USING QUANTITATIVE METHODS

The Plan uses the quantitative analysis and results described above to score and prioritize projects. The Plan ranks the identified projects on a scale of High, Medium and Low for each benefit type, and will prioritize the projects based on this scoring.

For the benefit category of augmenting local water supply, Table 6-16 ranks the four projects according to the estimated annual infiltration in AFY for the project.

Table 6-16. Project	Prioritization for	Augmenting	Local Water	Supply

Project	Total Project Volume Captured (AFY)	Project Ranking
JDF Complex Project	298	High
Yettem Project	6	Low
UDR Project	47	Medium
Robles Project	0	Low

Key:

AFY = acre-feet per year

JDF = Juvenile Detention Facility

UDR = Upper Detention/Retention

For the benefit category of restoring habitat, Table 6-17 ranks each of the four projects according to the estimated acres of habitat restored.

Project	Habitat Restored (Acres)	Project Ranking
JDF Complex Project	4.7	High
Yettem Project	0	Low
UDR Project	0	Low
Robles Project	0	Low

 Table 6-17. Project Prioritization for Restoring Habitat

Key: JDF = Juvenile Detention Facility

UDR = Upper Detention/Retention

For the benefit category of flood management, Table 6-18 ranks the four projects according to the estimated reduction in total runoff volume in AF.

Table 6-18. Project Prioritization for Flood Management Peak Flow Reduction

Project	2-Year	5-Year	10-Year	25-Year	50-Year	100-Year	Project Ranking
JDF Complex Project	23%	-3%	-6%	34%	15%	5%	High
Yettem Project	0%	0%	1%	6%	0%	0%	Low
UDR Project	0%	3%	11%	10%	11%	10%	Medium
Robles Project	7%	58%	67%	76%	28%	34%	High

Key:

JDF = Juvenile Detention Facility

UDR = Upper Detention/Retention

For the benefit category of water quality, Table 6-19 ranks the projects according to the estimated percent load reduction of runoff pollutants.

Table 6-19. Project	Prioritization for	Flood Management	Peak Flow Reduction
		U	

Project	2-Year	5-Year	10-Year	25-Year	50-Year	100-Year	Project Ranking
JDF Complex Project	54%	21%	56%	67%	55%	38%	High
Yettem Project	0%	0%	0.4%	3%	2%	1%	Low
UDR Project	0%	5%	21%	12%	8%	5%	Medium
Robles Project	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	Low

Key:

JDF = Juvenile Detention Facility

UDR = Upper Detention/Retention

The overall ranking of the project considers the scoring for each of the individual benefit categories. Table 6-20 considers all of the benefit categories and includes the final prioritized ranking of projects.

Project	Water Supply	Habitat Restoration	Flood Management	Water Quality	Project Ranking
JDF Complex Project	High	High	High	High	1
Yettem Project	Low	Low	Low	Low	4
UDR Project	Medium	Low	Medium	Medium	2
Robles Project	Low	Low	High	Low	3

Table 6-20. Overall Project Prioritization

Key:

JDF = Juvenile Detention Facility UDR = Upper Detention/Retention

6.8 APPROACH AND GEOSPATIAL ANALYSIS

All four projects identified in the Plan use a similar approach to quantify benefits. Geospatial analysis was used to develop all the inputs into the HEC-HMS to model runoff in the Watershed. Runoff was determined using rainfall totals that are statistically adjusted based on geographic location by the National Weather Service's Hydrometeorlogical Design Studies Center Precipitation Frequency Data Server. Each project was represented in the HEC-HMS model using its accurate geospatial location. The HEC-HMS model was used to determine flood management benefits and water supply benefits.

6.9 SUMMARY OF BENEFITS

As described in the sections above, the projects identified in the Plan are all multibenefit projects. Each project's benefits have been quantified using a metrics-based analysis that uses an integrated and geospatial approach. The only project that does not clearly meet the multi-benefit categories is the Robles Project, which was included in the analysis because of the maximum flood benefits that it would provide in the Watershed. This page left blank intentionally.

Section 7 Implementation Strategy and Schedule

This section describes the funding sources, regulations, and policies to give a holistic view of the current regulatory landscape. It is anticipated that as projects are refined during the conceptual and pre-design process, specific Plan requirements will become more clear. Furthermore, coordination amongst agencies and other interested parties will help refine project constraints, funding sources, required permits, land acquisition requirements, operations and maintenance needs, resource needs, and applicable regulations to successfully implement these multi-benefit projects. As such, this strategy is a general approach to implementing storm water projects in the Cottonwood Creek area, rather than a detailed report of all requirements necessary to implement the projects. The ongoing monitoring and revision efforts, as well as roles and responsibilities necessary for successful implementation of the Plan, are described.

7.1 RESOURCES FOR IMPLEMENTATION

Plan identifies resources for implementation, including: 1) projection of additional funding needs and sources for administration and implementation needs; and 2) schedule for arranging and securing Plan implementation financing.

Project planning, approval, and financing are all barriers to project implementation; with lack of funding often being the most significant barrier. The current funding situation, as well as a strategy for addressing the lack of funding, are described in the following subsections. There are many local, State, and Federal funding vehicles for water, green infrastructure, grey water, groundwater, reuse, wastewater, and storm water that are available for public projects.

Leveraging State and Federal financial and technical assistance cannot be accomplished without local financial support. Most State and Federal assistance programs require local cost sharing. The sections below provide foundational information and a collaborative forum of efforts among governments in Tulare County for budgetary recommendations, and to streamline the implementation and policy considerations for long-term sustainable water management. An initial cost estimate for each of the proposed projects is shown in Table 7-1.

Project	Anticipated Capital Cost
Juvenile Detention Facility (JDF) – Cottonwood Creek Project	\$2,408,619 ¹
Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project (Yettem)	\$430,000 ²
Upper Detention/Retention (UDR) Project	To be determined in future iteration.
Robles Lomas Ranch Detention (Robles) Project	To be determined in future iteration.

Table 7-1. Cost Projection of Plan Projects

Notes:

¹ Juvenile Detention Facility – Cottonwood Creek (JDF Complex) Project Proposition 1 Grant Application, http://tularecounty.ca.gov/SWRP

² Kings Basin IRWMP Project No. 124 – Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project

7.1.1 Statement of Funding Adequacy

The Plan includes research on various grant opportunities, loan prospects, technical assistance, and emergency support to be proactive in implementing projects—as many funding sources are transient. Funding sources for projects are determined by the project proponent on a case-by-case basis. Due to their conceptual nature, some projects have currently unidentified funding sources, as many require annual appropriation and approval, and the opportunities for potential State and Federal assistance varies. Project proponents will update project information and funding sources when available. Project proponents will coordinate with local, State, and Federal officials to determine the most appropriate funding for each project. In addition, resources for administration and implementation needs will continue to be incorporated into each RMA's annual budget, for staffing and materials associated with storm water and watershed activities.

Initial research has been performed into the adequacy of grants for the identified projects within this Plan. Table 7-2 identifies potential project funding opportunities. State and Federal grant opportunities are provided in Tables 7-3 and 7-4, respectively.

Project	Potential Funding Sources
Juvenile Detention Facility (JDF) -	California Proposition 1 (2014) Chapter 11 – Flood Protection (\$395M)
Cottonwood Creek Project	USACE Small Flood Damage Reduction Projects (CAP Section 205)
Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control	California Proposition 1 (2014) Chapter 11 – Flood Protection (\$395M)
Project	USBR – Drought Response Program
Upper Detention/Retention (UDR)	FEMA – Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program
Project	USACE Small Flood Damage Reduction Projects (CAP Section 205)
Robles Lomas Ranch Detention Project	FEMA – Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program

Table 7-2. Identified Project-Funding Opportunities

Kev:

CAP = Continuing Authorities Program

FEMA = Federal Emergency Management Agency

USACE = US Army Corps of Engineers

Table 7-3. Cottonwood Creek State Funding Opportunities

	Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program	This program assists public water systems in financing the cost of drinking water infrastructure projects needed to achieve or maintain compliance with Safe Drinking Water Act requirements.	Loan
	Proposition 84 Funding for Public Water Systems	This program provides funding for emergency clean water grants (Public Resources Code Section 75021), small community infrastructure improvements for chemical and nitrate contaminants (Public Resources Code Section 75022), or grants to prevent or reduce contamination of groundwater that serves as a source of drinking water (Public Resources Code Section 75025).	Grant
California Environmental Protection	Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program (CWSRF)	CWSRF program offers low cost financing for a wide variety of water quality projects. The program has significant financial assets and is capable of financing projects from <\$1 million to >\$100 million.	Loan
Agency – State Water Board	Water Recycling Funding Program	Promotes the beneficial use of treated municipal wastewater (water recycling) in order to augment fresh water supplies in California by providing technical and financial assistance to agencies and other stakeholders in support of water recycling projects and research.	Loan/ Technical Assistance
	Storm water Grant Program	Prop 1 (Assembly Bill 1471, Rendon) authorized \$7.545 billion in general obligation bonds for water projects including surface and groundwater storage, ecosystem and watershed protection and restoration, and drinking water protection. The State Water Board will administer Proposition 1 funds for five programs. Of the \$7.545 billion, Proposition 1 (Section 79747) provides \$200 million in grant funds for multi-benefit storm water management projects.	Grant
	Water or Energy Audit Financial Assistance	The purpose of the Water or Energy Audit is to encourage public agencies to take an independent look into their current practices, identify potentially inefficient water or energy use and follow up with a well thought out plan to improve consumption of these valuable resources. The agency is encouraged to study water and energy in the audit but may focus on one or the other. All audits must be related to projects, facilities, or activities that are otherwise eligible for CWSRF funding. Agencies may hire consultants to perform the audit or perform the work with their own staff.	Technical Assistance
-	Chapter 5 – Drinking Water Quality (\$520M).	To improve access to clean drinking water for disadvantaged communities (\$260M) and help small communities pay for wastewater treatment (\$260M).	Grant
	Chapter 6 – Watershed Protection and Restoration (\$1.5B).	To protect and restore watersheds and other habitat throughout the state.	Grant
	Chapter 7 – Regional Water Management (\$810M).	\$510M for allocations to specific regions throughout the state through the Integrated Regional Water Management program, \$200M for projects and plans to manage runoff from storms in urban areas, and \$100M for water conservation projects and programs.	Grant
California Proposition 1(2014)	Chapter 8 – Water Storage (\$2.7B).	Funds will go to "public benefits" of projects only. Projects must be in regions connected to the Bay-Delta watershed	Grant
	Chapter 9 – Water Recycling and Desalination (\$725M).	\$100M for contaminant and salt removal projects, and \$625M for water recycling, dedicated distribution infrastructure, pilot projects for new potable reuse and other salt removal technology, and multi-benefit recycled water projects that improve water quality, and technical grant writing assistance for disadvantaged communities.	Grant
	Chapter 10 – Groundwater Sustainability (\$900M).	For groundwater protection and cleanup programs, and development and implementation of groundwater sustainability plans.	Grant
	Chapter 11 – Flood Protection (\$395M).	\$295M to improve levees or respond to flood emergencies specifically in the Delta and \$100M for flood control projects anywhere in the state.	Grant
California Department of Housing and Community Development	Community Development Block Grant	This agency partners with rural cities and counties to improve the lives of their low- and moderate-income residents through the creation and expansion of community and economic development opportunities in support of livable communities.	Loan
California Department of Transportation	Cooperative Implementation Agreements	Cooperative Implementation Agreements between the Department and other responsible parties to conduct work to comply with a TMDL, and a Cooperative Implementation Grant Program funded by the Department and administered by the State Water Board. The grant program will be used to fund capital projects in impaired watersheds in which the Department has been assigned a Waste Load Allocation or otherwise has responsibility for implementation of the TMDL. Cooperative implementation will satisfy some or all of the Department's obligations under a TMDL, whether or not discharges from the Department's right of way are controlled or treated (Kontaxis 2017).	Grant
California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank	Infrastructure State Revolving Fund Program	The Infrastructure State Revolving Fund Program provides financing to public agencies and nonprofit corporations sponsored by public agencies for a wide variety of infrastructure and economic development projects (excluding housing).	Loan
Rural Community Assistance Corporation (RCAC)	Environmental Infrastructure Loans	This program helps create, improve or expand the supply of safe drinking water, waste disposal systems and other facilities that serve communities in the rural West. RCAC loan programs provide the early funds small rural communities need to determine feasibility and pay pre-development costs prior to receiving state and federal program funding. RCAC also may provide interim construction financing, as well as intermediate and long-term loans for system improvements.	Loan

This page left blank intentionally.

7.1.2 Federal Funding Assistance

Federal funding opportunities include the following entities and are provided for in Table 7-4:

US Army Corps of Engineers Funding Sources: The USACE is responsible for planning, designing, building, and operating locks and dams. Other civil engineering projects include flood control, beach nourishment, dredging for waterway navigation, design and construction of flood protection systems through various federal mandates, environmental regulation, and ecosystem restoration.

US Department of Agriculture Funding Sources: The following are funding sources from the US Department of Agriculture (USDA):

USDA Rural Development is committed to helping improve the economy and quality of life in all of rural America by providing financial programs to support essential public facilities and services such as water and sewer systems, housing, health clinics, emergency service facilities, and electric and telephone service. USDA Rural Development promotes economic development by providing loans to businesses through banks and community-managed lending pools, while also assisting communities with participation in community empowerment programs.

USDA Natural Resources and Environment ensures the health of the land through sustainable management and works to prevent damage to natural resources and the environment, restore the resource base, and promote good land management.

USDA Farm Production and Conservation is the USDA's focal point for the nation's farmers and ranchers and other stewards of private agricultural lands and nonindustrial private forest lands. Farm Production and Conservation agencies implement programs designed to mitigate the significant risks of farming through crop insurance services, conservation programs and technical assistance; and commodity, lending, and disaster programs.

US Environmental Protection Agency Funding Sources: Nearly half of the USEPA's budget goes into grants for state environmental programs, nonprofits, educational institutions, and others. These funds are used to implement a wide variety of projects, from scientific studies that help make decisions to community cleanups. Overall, grants help the USEPA achieve its mission of protecting human health and the environment.

Federal Emergency Management Agency Funding Sources: FEMA's mission is to support US citizens and to be the first responders to ensure that citizens and agencies work together to build, sustain, and improve capability to prepare for, protect against, respond to, recover from, and mitigate all hazards. *Miscellaneous Federal Funding Sources:* A variety of other funding sources are presented, including the US Departments of Commerce, Housing and Urban Development, Interior, Transportation, and the Economic Development Administration.

Funding Agency/Source	Program Name	Description	Type of Assistance
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers	Aquatic Ecosystem Restoration Continuing Authorities Program (CAP Section 206)	Work under this authority may carry out aquatic ecosystem restoration projects that will improve the quality of the environment, are in the public interest, and are cost-effective. Additional information about this program: http://www.spk.usace.army.mil/Portals/64/docs/Outreach/I nformation/Section206.pdf	Design and Construction Assistance
	Project Modifications for Improvement of the Environment (CAP Section 1135)	Work under this authority provides for modifications in the structures and operations of water resources projects constructed by the USACE to improve the quality of the environment. Additionally, the USACE may undertake restoration projects at locations where an existing USACE project has contributed to the degradation. Additional program information: http://www.spk.usace.army.mil/Portals/64/docs/Outreach/I nformation/1135.pdf	Design and Construction Assistance
	Small Flood Damage Reduction Projects (CAP Section 205)	Work under this authority provides for local protection from flooding by the construction or improvement of structural flood damage reduction features such as levees, channels, and dams. Nonstructural alternatives are also considered and may include measures such as installation of flood warning systems, raising and/or flood proofing of structures, and relocation of flood prone facilities. Additional information about this program: http://www.spk.usace.army.mil/Portals/64/docs/Outreach/I nformation/Section205.pdf	Design and Construction Assistance
	Snagging and Clearing for Flood Control (CAP Section 208)	Work under this authority provides for local protection from flooding by channel clearing and excavation, with limited embankment construction by use of materials from the clearing operation only. Additional information about this program: http://www.spk.usace.army.mil/Portals/64/docs/Outreach/I nformation/Section208.pdf	Design and Construction Assistance
U.S. Department of Agriculture	Conservation Reserve Program	This voluntary program provides agricultural landowners with annual rental payments and cost-share assistance to establish long-term, resource conserving covers on eligible farmland. The long-term goal of the program is to re-establish valuable land cover to help improve water quality, prevent soil erosion, and reduce loss of wildlife habitat.	Cost Share
	Agricultural Management Assistance	This program provides cost share assistance to agricultural producers to voluntarily address issues such as water management, water quality, and erosion control by incorporating conservation into their farming operations.	Cost Share

Table 7-4	. Federal	Funding	Opportunities
-----------	-----------	---------	----------------------

Funding Agency/Source	Program Name	Description	Type of Assistance
U.S. Department of Agriculture	Emergency Watershed Protection	This program helps protect lives and property threatened by natural disasters such as floods, hurricanes, tornadoes, droughts, and wildfires. The program provides funding for such work as clearing debris from clogged waterways, restoring vegetation, and stabilizing river banks.	Grant
	Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program	This voluntary land retirement program helps agricultural producers protect environmentally sensitive land, decrease erosion, restore wildlife habitat, and safeguard ground and surface water.	Grant
	Agricultural Easement Conservation Program	This program provides financial and technical assistance to help conserve agricultural lands and wetlands and their related benefits. Under the Wetlands Reserve Easements component, the NRCS helps to restore, protect, and enhance enrolled wetlands.	Grant/ Technical Assistance
U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) – Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)	Regional Conservation Partnership Program	This program provides an opportunity for partners to scope a 5-year project in partnership with NRCS to enhance and accelerate conservation efforts, innovation, and locally-driven solutions. Partnering organizations design, promote, implement, and evaluate the project outcomes in partnership with NRCS programs.	Technical Assistance
	Watershed and Flood Prevention Operations Program	This program works to prevent erosion, floodwater, and sediment damage; to further the conservation, development, utilization, and disposal of water; and to further the conservation and proper utilization of land in authorized watersheds.	Grant/Technic al Assistance
	Special Evaluation Assistance for Rural Communities and Households	This program helps very small, financially distressed rural communities with predevelopment feasibility studies, design assistance, and technical assistance on proposed water and waste disposal projects.	Technical Assistance
U.S. Department of Agriculture – Rural Development	Water and Waste Disposal Guaranteed Loan Program	This program helps private lenders provide affordable financing to qualified borrowers to improve access to clean, reliable water and waste disposal systems for households and businesses in rural areas. This is achieved through bolstering existing private credit structure through the guarantee of quality loans. Guarantees up to 90 percent available to eligible lenders.	Loan
	Water and Waste Disposal Revolving Loan Funds	This program assists communities with water and wastewater systems. Qualified private nonprofit organizations will receive grant funds to establish a lending program for eligible entities. This grant program is to serve a rural area with a population of not more than 10,000 residents.	Grant

Table 7-4. Federal Funding Opportunities (cont.)

Funding Agency/Source	Program Name	Description	Type of Assistance
U.S. Department of Agriculture – Rural Development	Water and Waste Disposal Predevelop- ment Planning Grants	This program assists low-income communities with initial planning and development of an application for USDA Rural Development Water and Waste Disposal direct loan/grant and loan guarantee programs.	Loan/Grant
	Emergency Community Water Assistance Grants	This grant program is designed to assist rural communities that have experienced a significant decline in quantity or quality of drinking water due to an emergency, or in which such decline is considered imminent, to obtain or maintain adequate quantities of water that meets the standards set by the Safe Drinking Water Act.	Grant
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency	Source Reduction Assistance Grant Program	This program awards support pollution prevention through source reduction and resource conservation work. As authorized under the statutory authorities for this grant program, proposals must carry out project activities using one or more of the following methods of surveys, studies, research, investigation, experimentation, education, training and/or demonstrations.	Grant
	Clean Water State Revolving Fund	This program provides a permanent source of low-cost financing for a wide range of water quality infrastructure projects. These projects include municipal wastewater treatment and collection, nonpoint source pollution controls, decentralized wastewater treatment systems, green infrastructure, water efficiency, and estuary management.	Loan
	Urban Waters Small Grants	This program has an emphasis on engaging communities with environmental justice concerns. The objective of the Urban Waters Small Grants is to fund projects that will foster a comprehensive understanding of local urban water issues, identify and address these issues at the local level, and educate and empower the community. In particular, the Urban Waters Small Grants seek to help restore and protect urban water quality and revitalize adjacent neighborhoods by engaging communities in activities that increase their connection to, understanding of, and stewardship of local urban waterways.	Grant
	Wetlands Program Development Grants	These grants Wetland Program Development Grants are intended to encourage comprehensive wetlands program development by promoting the coordination and acceleration of research, investigations, experiments, training, demonstrations, surveys, and studies relating to the causes, effects, extent, prevention, reduction, and elimination of water pollution.	Grant
	Nonpoint Source Implementa- tion Grants (319 Program)	Under Section 319, states, territories, and tribes receive grant money that supports a wide variety of activities including: technical assistance, financial assistance, education, training, technology transfer, demonstration projects, and monitoring to assess the success of specific nonpoint source implementation projects.	Grant

 Table 7-4. Federal Funding Opportunities (cont.)

Funding Agency/Source	Program Name	Description	Type of Assistance
U.S. Federal Emergency Management Agency	Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program	This program is designed to assist States, U.S. Territories, Federally-recognized tribes, and local communities in implementing a sustained pre-disaster natural hazard mitigation program. The goal is to reduce overall risk to the population and structures from future hazard events, while also reducing reliance on Federal funding in future disasters.	Grant/Technic al Assistance
	Flood Mitigation Assistance Program (FMA)	This program is authorized by Section 1366 of the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968, with the goal of reducing or eliminating claims under the National Flood Insurance Program. FMA provides funding to States, Territories, federally-recognized tribes and local communities for projects and planning that reduces or eliminates long-term risk of flood damage to structures insured under the NFIP. FMA funding is also available for management costs.	Grant/Technic al Assistance
U.S. Department of Commerce Economic Development	Investments for Public Works and Economic Adjustment Assistance Programs	Empowers distressed communities to revitalize, expand, and upgrade their physical infrastructure, and generate or retain long-term, private sector jobs and investment.	Technical Assistance
Administration	Community Development Block Grant	This program is a flexible program that provides communities with resources to address a wide range of unique community development needs.	Grant
	Drought Response Program	Reclamation's Drought Response Program supports a proactive approach to drought. It will provide assistance to water users for drought contingency planning, including consideration of climate change information and to take actions that will build long-term resiliency to drought.	Technical Assistance
of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation	Title XVI Water Reclamation and Reuse Program	Though this program, Reclamation identifies and investigates opportunities to reclaim and reuse wastewaters and naturally impaired ground and surface water in the 17 Western States and Hawaii. Title XVI includes funding for feasibility studies and research, and the construction of water recycling projects on a project specific basis, in partnership with local governmental entities.	Technical Assistance
U.S. Economic Development Administration	Planning Program and Local Technical Assistance Program	Through its Planning Program and Local Technical Assistance Program, this administration assists eligible recipients in developing economic development plans and studies designed to build capacity and guide the economic prosperity and resiliency of an area or region.	Technical Assistance

Table 7-4. Federal Fu	Inding Opportunities	(cont.)
-----------------------	----------------------	---------

CRP = Conservation Reserve Program FEMA = Federal Emergency Management Agency

Reclamation = United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation

FMA = Flood Mitigation Assistance Program NFIP = National Flood Insurance Program

USACE = United State Army Corps of Engineer USDA = United State Department of Agriculture

USEPA = United States Environmental Protect Agency
7.2 PROJECT AND PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION

Plan projects and programs are identified to ensure the effective implementation of the storm water resource plan pursuant to this part and to achieve multiple benefits.

Storm water management is currently going through a change in California due to the increased awareness of storm water-related environmental challenges and opportunities to be part of long-term solutions to water conflict and scarcity statewide. While early regulatory efforts focused on controlling pollutants and implementing BMPs, current regulatory decisions also emphasize holistic strategies that will result in multiple community benefits while concurrently managing pollution. With the focus on storm water as a resource, newer low-impact development and green infrastructure techniques are now capitalizing on opportunities to capture storm water runoff, and to use it for local landscape and agricultural irrigation, and groundwater recharge. The Plan supports this paradigm shift in the way water is managed in California, therefore the Plan will only accept projects that are multi-benefit opportunities.

The Plan will use a metric-based approach to maximize water supply, water quality, flood management, environmental, and community benefits in the Watersheds to be consistent with the Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines (Water Code Section 10560 et seq.). These benefits categories are presented in Table 7-5. Each project and program added will address at least two or more main benefits, as shown below, and will include as many feasible additional benefits.

Benefit Category	Criteria
	Increased filtration and/or treatment of runoff
Water Quality	Nonpoint source pollution control
	Reestablished natural water drainage and treatment
Water Supply	Water supply reliability
water Supply	Water conservation
	Conjunctive use
Flood	Decreased flood risk by reducing runoff rate and/or volume
Management	Reduced sanitary sewer overflows
	Environmental and habitat protection and improvement
	Increased urban green space
	Reestablishment of the natural hydrograph
T	Energy footprint
	Water temperature improvements
	Public education
Community	Community involvement
[™] ₩	Recreational benefit
	Employment opportunities provided

 Table 7-5. Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan Multi-Benefit Categories

7.3 DATA COLLECTION AND DECISION SUPPORT TOOLS

The Plan identifies the development of appropriate decision support tools and the data necessary to use the decision support tools.

Managing water resources data at a watershed scale, in a consistent manner and providing access to this information to the entities identified herein, is critical to successful implementation of the Plan. Properly managed data will help the RMA, project implementers, stakeholders, interested parties, elected officials, and the public understand water quantity and quality issues. The data will also help assess and develop additional potential projects as solutions, and to implement projects efficiently.

The RMA developed a cost analysis tool using Autocase for Sites (https://autocase.com/) with information on all current projects identified in the Plan. The responsibility for providing project data is on the entity collecting it (i.e., project leads). Any entity can contribute potential projects and update data for County consideration, and to incorporate it into the tool to track costs associated with the multi-benefits associated with each project. This tool will be managed by the County, and updated annually, or as needed by the County RMA. While only the RMA will have access to the tool, the information contained in the tool will be published on a regular basis as part of the accomplishment summary.

7.4 IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

Successful implementation of the Plan depends on clearly defined roles and responsibilities of the RMA, project-specific implementing entities, stakeholders, interested parties, elected officials, and the public. Responsibilities of key entities are described in this section.

The primary purpose of the RMA will be to provide oversight of the Plan and make related decisions, to resolve any issues presented by the participating entities, provide guidance and direction on next steps and recommended actions (as appropriate), and to engage with stakeholders and interested parties. The RMA will continue to assist with the following:

- 1. *The RMA, per direction of the District*, will be the lead entity responsible for administration, monitoring, and reporting of the Plan. The RMA will also be responsible for coordinating local storm water control measures, such as BMP projects, surface water storage projects and flood control projects.
- 2. The local GSAs (Kings River East, East Kaweah, and Greater Kaweah) will be responsible for administration, monitoring, and reporting of the groundwater augmentation portion of their chosen Plan projects, commensurate with responsibilities provided by SGMA.

3. *IRWM Plan Groups (Kings and Kaweah River Basins)* will be responsible for administration, monitoring, and reporting of the Plan elements regarding the overall water resources management within their respective planning area.

Plan representatives will continue to be management-level officials with authority to commit their respective entities to a course of action.

The focus of each role listed above differs, to best integrate the strengths of each respective agency. As discussed in Section 2 Watershed Identification, the Plan is tailored to address the unique conditions of Tulare County, which is a mostly rural agricultural setting in the Central Valley. Although each agency team member will oversee different aspects of the Plan, close coordination will continue to occur to promote successful plan implementation.

7.4.1 Timeline for Integration with Existing Plans

Include timeline for submitting Plan into existing plans, as applicable.

The JDF Complex Project and Yettem Project contained within the Plan are included in the Kings Basin IRWM Plan. Other projects identified within the Plan need to undergo further analysis before being included in the Kaweah River Basin IRWM Plan.

7.4.2 Implementation Actions

State specific actions by which the Plan will be implemented.

The Plan uses an outcomes-based approach. This approach means that the RMA will measure the implementation of this plan against the overarching purpose, rather than meeting specific numeric limits. Education and awareness about the direction of the Plan in Tulare County is required for successful implementation. Monitoring of performance measures will take place at two levels: the Plan performance as a whole, and individual project implementation. The Plan will be measured against the following implementation performance measures:

- Makes progress towards meeting Plan objectives
- Provides additional funding for projects in the Cottonwood Creek area
- Enhances the water quality and water availability in the Cottonwood Creek area
- Educates the public about how local water supplies are impacted by daily activities
- Creates a dialogue with all entities implementing storm water programs on Cottonwood Creek, and collaborates to pursue funding opportunities

Implementation of projects will be measured against the following performance measures:

- Meets schedule, budget, and technical specifications identified in the Cottonwood Creek Plan
- Realizes multi-benefits in the Cottonwood Creek area
- Conducts active public outreach in project design and construction

The Autocase for Sites tool will serve as one method to track performance measures in combination with other project monitoring efforts. These activities will provide ongoing analysis and information management as to the performance of Plan implementation. Future updates to the Plan will also summarize plan performance to date.

7.4.3 Responsible Parties

All entities responsible for project implementation will be specified.

Project-Specific Implementing Entities: The project-specific implementing entities are those responsible for project implementation and any associated activities. The RMA will serve as the lead implementing agency and, where appropriate, work in coordination with other entities, such as GSAs engaged consistent with their respective jurisdictional responsibilities. The RMA will continue to engage with these other entities on the Plan. Participation will not be mandatory, and each entity will make its own decisions on project implementation and any associated activities. Partnerships may be formed to support funding and implementation.

Stakeholders and Interested Parties: Stakeholders and interested parties will be actively engaged in updating and implementing the Plan. Potential stakeholders and interested parties include local ratepayers, developers, locally regulated commercial and industrial stakeholders, public utility districts, and NGOs. They will continue to be provided with updates by the RMA on Plan progress and opportunities to comment. Some Plan meetings will be open for stakeholder and interested parties' involvement, and the County will post information and materials on its website as well as send email notifications, as needed. Participation will continue to be voluntary and open to any entity or individual expressing interest.

Elected Officials and Public: Elected officials (e.g., board of directors, board of supervisors) and the public—including DAC members—will be informed of updates on Plan progress. Public presentations associated with the Plan will occur on an annual basis, or as-needed, before the District. Information for these meetings will be posted by the County on its website, as well as through email notifications, as needed. Participation will continue to be voluntary and open to any entity or individual expressing interest. Additional information on Plan public engagement activities is provided in Section 8 Education, Outreach, and Public Participation.

7.4.4 Project Tracking Procedures

Procedures to track status of each project, in that the Plan describes how implementation performance measures will be tracked.

The JDF Complex Project and Yettem Project are currently in the planning and construction phase of their project lifecycles, respectively. The UDR Project and the Robles Project are in the conceptual phase. The stages of development as identified in the project planning sheet are listed below:

- 1. Conceptual development
- 2. Planning
- 3. Pre-design
- 4. Design
- 5. Construction
- 6. Commissioning
- 7. Operations and maintenance

When a project is in one of the last three stages, the amount of funding for which it is eligible becomes limited. The project proponent should evaluate all sources, amounts, timing, and requirements as they vary depending on the project's lifecycle stage.

The Plan currently identifies multi-benefit projects that exemplify the management of storm water quality and water resources in structural projects. In the future, nonstructural projects may involve public outreach, education, and demonstration facilities that may be identified through collaboration with GSAs. Implementing these varied and diverse projects poses unique challenges. The Plan encourages collaboration amongst public and private entities to most efficiently and effectively implement projects and to maximize benefits to the Cottonwood Creek area. It also encourages grouping of projects into larger projects or programs to meet more of the benefit categories, to increase eligibility for funding, and to increase efficiency of implementation.

Tracking the status of the Plan will occur annually, or on an as-needed basis. The cyclic revision patterns of the Plan are presented in Figure 7-1 below.



Figure 7-1. Iterative Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan Amendment Process

7.4.5 Planned Project Timeline

Include timelines for all active or planned projects.

A master project schedule is presented in Table 7-6. The intent of the master project schedule is to provide an opportunity to discuss the scheduling of projects. The implementation schedule will continue to be contingent upon receiving funding for the projects listed.

This page left blank intentionally.

		D 1					_							
Drain et1	Conceptual	Development	Plar	nning	Pre-D	esign	L	Design	Const	ruction	Comm	issioning	Operations and	Maintenance
Project	Start Date	End Date	Start Date	End Date	Start Date	End Date	Start Date	End Date	Start Date	End Date	Start Date	End Date	Start Date	End Date
Juvenile Detention Facility (JDF) – Cottonwood Creek Project	Complete	Complete	January 2019	March 2019	April 2019	May2019	June 2019	August 2019	September 2019	December 2020	January 2021	March 2021	April 2021	Ongoing
Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project (Yettem)	Complete	Complete	April 2022	October 2022	October 2022	January 2023	March 2023	September 2023	April 2024	December 2025	January 2026	February 2026	February 2026	Ongoing
Upper Detention/Retention (UDR) Project ²	Complete	Complete	2023	2025	2025	2026	2026	2028	2028	2030	2030	2031	2032	Ongoing
Robles Lomas Ranch Detention (Robles) Project ²	Complete	Complete	2025	2030	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	2036	2037	2037	2038	Ongoing

Table 7-6. Funding Contingent Plan Project Schedule

 Notes:
 1
 1

 ¹Project schedule subject to revision based on available funding.
 2

 ²There projects and schedules are dependent upon land acquisition and easements required for implementation.

This page left blank intentionally.

7.4.6 Adaptive Management Procedure

Procedures for ongoing review, updates, and adaptive management of the Plan.

The County expects that Plan implementation will involve regular monitoring and evaluation efforts to track project implementation progress and to use available information to guide future changes in the Plan. The RMA also expects that monitoring and evaluating activities would occur throughout each year of implementation, with the project list reviewed annually and project description forms updated as needed by entities implementing the specific projects. The evaluation of the need for a comprehensive update of the Plan will occur every five years, or sooner if significant changes occur with the projects and budget or if regulatory compliance requires change. Initiation and completion of implementation and update activities will be contingent on the availability of sufficient funding.

7.4.6.1 Activities, Process, and Schedule

The anticipated activities, process, and schedule for implementing, monitoring, evaluating, and updating the Plan are presented in Table 7-7 in the form of a Responsibility Assignment Matrix chart. The categories for this chart are as follows:

- Responsible: entity who performs an activity or does the work.
- Accountable: entity who is responsible and has yes/no/veto authority.
- Consulted: entity that needs to provide feedback and contribute to the activity.
- Informed: entity that needs to know of a decision or action.

Activity	Frequency	Tulare County Flood Control District	County or GSAs (Kings River East, East Kaweah, Greater Kaweah)	Stakeholders and Interested Parties	Elected Officials and Public
Tracking Cottonwood Creek Plan Progress. The RMA will review any changes/progress, determine the need for new/revised actions, and update the status of existing actions and add new actions.	Annually (or as needed)	R, A	I	С	I
Project Prioritization and Budgetary Considerations. The RMA will meet annually to: (1) discuss evolving needs in the region and issues to be addressed with the Plan; (2) identify funding needs and sources for the following year's activities; and (3) develop a plan to pursue identified funds.	Annually (or as needed)	R,A	С	I	I
Project Development, Approval, and Implementation. Development and initiation of projects will be the responsibility of the project proponent(s), meaning the individual entity or group of entities.	As needed	С	R, A	С	I
Plan Update Need Evaluation. Every 5 years, the RMA will assess the need for and prepare an updated Plan.	Every 5 years (or as necessary)	R, A	С	С	Ι
Communication and Outreach. The RMA and proje	Communication and Outreach. The RMA and project proponents will do the following:				
Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan. This effort will include website updates and email communications to keep interested stakeholders informed of meetings, new materials, and other information related to the Plan and its implementation.	As needed	R, A	С	I	I
Projects. Each individual County will be responsible for apprising its ratepayers and the public of any actions initiated and related progress/results.	As needed	С	R, A	С	I
Coordination with Other Regional/Statewide Ongoing Efforts. Coordination and information sharing with other ongoing efforts will be beneficial to both the Plan and other efforts It is anticipated that this will occur on an as-needed basis.	As needed	R	I	I	I

Table 7-7. Anticipated Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan Implementation and Update Activities

A = AccountableC = Consulted

I = Informed R = Responsible

RACI responsibility matrix

7.4.6.2 Triggers to Reassess the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan

Although the RMA intends to regularly revisit the Plan and its performance, and to assess the need for five-year updates, there may be events or occurrences that have substantial effects on storm water management and that trigger an update of the Plan (or a portion thereof) outside of that cycle. These triggers may include, but are not limited to:

- State and Federal regulations or requirements that often change, as well as new ones that go into effect.
- Unanticipated changes resulting from natural disasters, infrastructure failures, or other events may require reassessment of projects.

7.4.7 Permitting

Provide a strategy and timeline for obtaining necessary Federal, State, and local permits.

As funding is identified for projects, one of the first tasks will be identifying necessary permits as part of the design phase of the project. Depending on the type of project, the necessary permits will vary, and sufficient time must be allocated to meet the overall project implementation schedules shown in Table 7-6. For project implementation, project proponents are responsible for being compliant with applicable laws, regulations, and permit conditions (e.g., transportation encroachment, utility, and building permits).

Currently, the JDF Complex Project is the only project in the Plan that has obtained funding for implementation. Identified required permits are shown below in Table 7-8.

Project	Identified Permits
	EIR
	Nationwide Permit 27
Juvenile Detention Facility (JDF) – Cottonwood Creek Project	Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit
	Clean Water Action Section 201 Permit
	Fish and Game code Section 1602 Permit
Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project	The Programmatic EIR (CEQA) was completed and adopted by the Tulare County Board of Supervisors by Resolution No. 2014-0789 on November 4, 2014. All permits are in hand.
Upper Detention/Retention (UDR) Project	To be determined during CEQA/NEPA Analysis
Robles Lomas Ranch Detention Project	To be determined during CEQA/NEPA Analysis

Table 7-8. Identified Project Permits

Key:

CEQA = California Environmental Quality Act

EIR = Environmental Impact Report NEPA = National Environmental Policy Act

7.5 INCORPORATION WITH IRWM PLAN

The Plan will be submitted, upon development, to the applicable integrated regional water management (IRWM) group for incorporation into the IRWM plan.

At the time of this Plan, two of the four identified projects have been screened, reviewed and included in an IRWMP. These projects include the JDF Complex and Yettem Projects. Each has been incorporated in the Kings Basin IRWM Plan 2018 Update. While the Yettem project is fully located within the Kings Basin boundary, the JDF Complex Project is in an area where the boundaries of the Kings and Kaweah River Basin IRWM Groups overlap. To address this overlap, the RMA will submit this Plan to the Kaweah River Basin IRWM Plan for future incorporation. This submittal will additionally initiate evaluation of the UDR Project, which was identified through modeling activities implemented to inform this Plan.

Future storm water projects added to the Plan will be coordinated and incorporated within the applicable IRWM plan.

Section 8 Education, Outreach, and Public Participation

Consistent with California Water Code §10562(b)(4), the RMA intends to provide opportunities for public and key stakeholder education, outreach, and participation during implementation of, and future updates to, this Plan. This section identifies watershed-based storm water management efforts that maximize engagement with the public, relevant agencies, nonprofit organizations, NGOs, and disadvantaged or climate-vulnerable communities within the plan boundaries during implementation and plan revision.

8.1 COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

Community participation is provided for in the Plan implementation.

Community participation during Plan implementation will consist of watershed-based and site-specific communication and engagement activities conducted through existing venues and communication tactics. These activities are outlined in the following sections.

8.1.1 Watershed-Based Participation

As described in Section 4, watershed-based storm water management, and related water resource management efforts in the Plan area is provided by the District, Kings Basin IRWM Group, Kaweah River Basin IRWM Group, and local agencies engaged in the development of sustainable groundwater management actions. These organizations serve as important outlets for coordination, collaboration, communication, and public participation in storm water management activities identified in this Plan. Open to the public, these gatherings are attended by a broad cross section of key regional stakeholders including landowners, members of disadvantaged communities, nonprofit organizations, public and private water providers; and local, State, and Federal regulatory agencies. These groups and their contribution to community participation during Plan implementation are as follows:

8.1.1.1 Tulare County Flood Control District

Role: Implementing Agency

Meetings of the Tulare County Flood Control Commission are public, and they are held once per month, unless otherwise rescheduled. The public and other stakeholders are encouraged to attend commission meetings to participate in Plan implementation, and for identification of additional projects that achieve watershed-based storm water management objectives. Members of the public and other interested parties can also suggest storm water management projects via an on-line intake Flood Control Project Request form maintained on the District's website at <u>http://tularecounty.ca.gov/SWRP</u>.

8.1.1.2 Kings Basin IRWM Group

Role: Coordinating Agency

The Kings Basin IRWM Group will serve as a key partner for implementation and future modification of this Plan. Kings Basin IRWM Group meetings are open to the public and held monthly. The public and other interested parties will be encouraged to participate in these meetings during Plan implementation.

8.1.1.3 Kaweah River Basin IRWM Group

Role: Coordinating Agency

Progress on Plan implementation and its revision will be performed during publicly held meetings of the Kaweah River Basin IRWM Group. The public and other interested parties will be encouraged to participate in these meetings during Plan implementation.

8.1.1.4 Groundwater Sustainability Agencies

Role: Coordinating Agencies

As the land-use authority that's subject to SGMA, the County maintains an important role in development of regional GSPs. The County serves on the board of directors of the Greater Kaweah GSA, East Kaweah GSA, Kings River East GSA, and Mid-Kaweah GSA. In addition, the County is also an active participant in technical and community-based committees formed to develop the GSP. These committee and board forums provide further involvement opportunities for the public and other interested parties to receive information related to implementation of this Plan, and to provide recommendations for revisions to the Plan.

8.1.2 Site-Specific Participation

Site-specific participation is intended to solicit public participation as feedback to individual projects identified in the Plan, or to receive community recommendations for new projects to incorporate in future planning processes. This participation is accomplished through existing coordination with committees, boards, and community groups active in the Plan area.

8.1.3 Other Communication Activities

The following activities will be considered to encourage on-going communication and engagement activities throughout Plan implementation and revision.

Email Notification List: The County maintains a Plan interested-parties database for distribution of Plan implementation information (See Appendix C). Contact information

for individuals and organizations interested in being added to the mailing list is available on the Storm Water Resource Management web page maintained by the County at:<u>http://tularecounty.ca.gov/SWRP</u>.

Website: The County will continue to maintain the Storm Water Resource Management page within the RMA portal. This page will be periodically modified during plan implementation and encourage on-going public and agency involvement. The website is located at: <u>http://tularecounty.ca.gov/SWRP</u>.

8.2 IMPLEMENTATION OF TECHNICAL AND POLICY ISSUES

Plan describes public education and public participation opportunities to engage the public when considering major technical and policy issues related to the development and implementation.

The public and other interested parties will be encouraged to provide input on major technical and policy issues during meetings held with implementing and coordinating agencies as described in Section 8.1. During these meetings, the public and other interested parties can discuss and provide input on technical and policy issues associated with Plan implementation, and they can provide input on topics to be incorporated into future versions of the Plan.

8.3 MECHANISMS TO FACILITATE PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Plan describes mechanisms, processes, and milestones that have been or will be used to facilitate public participation and communication during development and implementation of the Plan.

To facilitate public participation in implementation of the Plan, and to aid the eventual revision of the Plan, the County intends to partner with the implementing and coordinating agencies as described in Section 8.1. This approach recognizes the changing setting in watershed-based storm water management activities as associated with State legislation linked to IRWM and SGMA. As mentioned in Section 8.1, the public will be encouraged to provide input and feedback during implementation as part of the full context of each agency's progress to implement their respective plans. Mechanisms are anticipated to include committee workshops and presentations to governing boards.

A substantive milestone in revision of the plan is anticipated to be the formal adoption and implementation of GSPs by the three GSAs in the Watershed. The format of this will be dependent on the extent to which GSAs identify projects that depend on watershed-based storm water management actions within the Cottonwood Creek Watershed.

8.4 PROJECT DESIGN ENGAGEMENT

Plan describes mechanisms to engage communities in project design and implementation.

Identified projects in this Plan that advance to implementation will be performed in accordance with applicable local, State, and Federal regulations, as appropriate, in coordination with the public and other interested parties. The mechanism for this engagement is anticipated to include the following tasks:

- Project Scoping: The County will host a public scoping meeting during a session of the Tulare County Flood Control Commission. This will include a review of the project purpose and objective, disclosure of the range of projects considered and their priority consistent with the Plan, and other applicable topics. The public and other interested parties will be encouraged to provide verbal comments or formal written comments.
- Agency Coordination: As applicable, the County will schedule and host project coordination meetings with agencies with jurisdictional or regulatory oversight of the project. Theses may include municipal and industrial water purveyors, utility districts, GSAs, irrigation districts, and flood control operators.
- Public Comment Report: Subsequent to project scoping, the County will compile an administrative record received during public comments and provide written responses. This report will be provided to the Tulare County Flood Control Commission for their review and consideration.
- Project Implementation Reports: Managers of Plan projects authorized for implementation by the Tulare County Flood Control Commission will provide periodic progress summaries during commission meetings. The public and other interested parties will be encouraged to provide input at this time.

8.5 AUDIENCE IDENTIFICATION

Plan identifies specific audiences including local ratepayers, developers, locally regulated commercial and industrial stakeholders, nonprofit organizations, and the general public.

The Watershed is an unincorporated region of Tulare County. The socio-economic structure of the Plan area is diverse; with a blend of small communities, rural homes, commercial/industrial operations, and agricultural operations. Industrial and commercial sectors are limited, and they are primarily associated with the agricultural economy. Each community within the watershed has been identified as a DAC or a SDAC (see Section 8.6, and Figure 8-1 Cottonwood Creek Disadvantaged Communities).



Figure 8-1. Cottonwood Creek Disadvantaged Communities

Audience identification activities performed to-date were achieved through partnerships with organizations that serve as stakeholder conveners for water resource management initiatives. These organizations are listed in Sections 8.1.1 and 8.1.2.

Future audience identification will be focused on support for implementation of projects identified in this plan and stakeholder identification at a sub-watershed level. This subwatershed organization includes the four distinct sub-watersheds within the Cottonwood Creek Watershed as displayed in Figure 2-1 Cottonwood Creek Watershed. These subwatersheds will be assessed for their audience composition that considers socioeconomic status, land use, and other demographic factors. This assessment will assist the County in framing outreach and project identification activities that reflect local objectives of residents and businesses within each of the four sub-watersheds. This assessment is anticipated to include coordination and consultation with local agencies (See Section 8.1.2), regional GSAs, and disadvantaged community advocacy groups, including the Community Water Center, Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability, and SHE. These organizations have been valuable partners with the County for outreach to disadvantaged communities and are viewed as trusted advisors. For example, Tulare County partnered with SHE and the Community Water Center to develop the Disadvantaged Community Water Study for the Tulare Lake Basin through a Proposition 84 grant (administered Nov. 2010 through Nov. 2014).

8.6 DISADVANTAGED AND CLIMATE-VULNERABLE COMMUNITIES

Plan describes strategies to engage disadvantaged and climate vulnerable communities within the Plan boundaries and ongoing tracking of their involvement in the planning process.

DWR defines a DAC as a community with an annual median household income (MHI) that is less than 80 percent of the statewide annual median household income (MHI), and a SDAC as less than 60 percent of the annual statewide MHI. As shown in Table 8-1, all of the communities in the Cottonwood Creek region are designated as either a DAC or SDAC. These areas include the unincorporated communities of Cutler, East Orosi, Ivanhoe, Orosi, and Sultana; the hamlets of Monson, Seville, and Yettem; and the Patterson Tract, an area viewed as a neighborhood within the Urban Area Boundaries of the City of Visalia⁷.

Key state legislative guidance, to identify and engage disadvantaged and climatevulnerable communities within the plan boundaries, includes Assembly Bill 2722 and Senate Bill 1000. This legislation utilized the California Communities Environmental Health Screening Tool (CalEnviroScreen) developed by the California Environmental Protection Agency. CalEnviroScreen is a mapping tool that helps identify California communities most affected by sources of pollution, and areas where people are especially vulnerable to pollution's impact. The tool uses environmental, health, and

⁷ 2030 Tulare County General Plan, SB 244 Disadvantaged Communities Assessment Report (2015)

socioeconomic information to produce scores for every census tract in the state. It applies scores so that different communities can be compared. An area with a high score is one that experiences a much higher pollution burden than areas with low scores. Scores for the communities within the Plan area—represented as a percentile of the state—are provided by US Census Tract in Table 8-1.

City/Community	Annual MHI ¹	DAC/SDAC Designation ²	Cottonwood Creek Zone	CalEnviroScreen 3.0 Census Tract and Percentile
Cutler	\$29,655	SDAC	Secondary	Census Tract 6107000600: 75-80%
East Orosi	\$32,313	SDAC	Secondary	Census Tract 6107000202: 80-85%
Ivanhoe	\$31,611	SDAC	Primary	Census Tract: 6107000800: 70 to 75%
Monson	\$46,250	DAC	Secondary	Census Tract: 6107000301: 75-80%
Orosi	\$33,293	SDAC	Secondary	Census Tract 6107000201: 85-90%
Patterson Tract	\$39,006	DAC	Secondary	Census Tract: 6107000900: 85-90%
Seville	\$23,000	SDAC	Primary	Census Tract 6107000600: 75-80% Census Tract 6107000800: 70-75%
Yettem	\$33,2393	SDAC3	Primary	Census Tract 6107000600: 75-80%

Table 8-1. DAC/SDAC	Communities in	Cottonwood Creek
---------------------	----------------	------------------

Key:

DAC = disadvantaged community

MHI = median household income

SDAC = severely disadvantaged community

Notes:

¹MHI data from 2012 – 2016 U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey Five-Year Estimates for Census Designated Place.

² DAC/SDAC designation based on 2012 – 2016 U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey Five-Year Estimates. Annual California Statewide MHI for 2012 – 2016 was \$63,783. DACs are communities with less than 80 percent of the annual MHI. SDACs are communities with less than 60 percent annual MHI.

³ MHI data from 2012-2016 U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey Five-Year Estimates for Disadvantage Communities Tract. No data available as Census Designated Place.

Communication and coordination with these groups, for Plan design engagement purposes, is best achieved through presentations at existing community meetings and in collaboration with regional disadvantaged community advocacy groups. These advocacy groups are nonprofit organizations established to assist disadvantaged communities with, among other things, engagement with public agencies on a wide range of environmental justice challenges. Engagements with local and regional advocacy groups were conducted through several regional resource-management planning efforts established in response to state laws and regulations. These efforts include meetings of the Tulare County Flood Control Commission, the Kings Basin IRWMP, the Kaweah River Basin IRWMP, and board and committee meetings of regional GSAs. Local advocacy groups frequently engaged in these planning efforts as active participants including: Community Water Center (CWC), SHE, and the Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability (LCJA).

Participation of these advocacy groups and disadvantaged community members is tracked through attendance records at public meetings, summaries of public meetings, and written comments provided to County staff that are applicable to the Plan.

8.7 IDENTIFICATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL INJUSTICE NEEDS

Plan describes efforts to identify and address environmental injustice needs and issues within the watershed.

California was one of the first states in the nation to codify environmental justice in statute. Government Code § 65040.12 defines environmental justice to mean the fair treatment of people of all races, cultures, and incomes with respect to the development, adoption, implementation and enforcement of environmental laws, regulations, and policies. Beyond the fair treatment called for in the code, leaders in the environmental justice movement strive to include individuals disproportionately impacted by pollution and other climate vulnerabilities in their decision-making processes. The aim is to lift the unfair burden of pollution from those most vulnerable to its impact.

Projects identified in this Plan seek to address, in part, public safety threats to disadvantaged communities from flood; and to contribute to the replenishment of groundwater resources that these communities depend on for drinking water. The Yettem Detention Basins, for example, would become the first component of a storm drainage system for the hamlet of Yettem⁸. County efforts to identify environmental injustice needs within the Plan area are conducted as part of engagement activities with disadvantaged and climate -vulnerable communities as described in Section 8.6.

While there are no Federally recognized Native American tribe reservations within the Plan boundaries, the County recognizes that California Native Americans' prehistoric, historic, archaeological, cultural, and sacred places are essential elements in tribal cultural traditions, heritages, and identities. Consistent with the goals, objectives, and requirements of Assembly Bill 52; the County submitted a Tribal Consultation List request to the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) on Sept. 24, 2018. This request to the NAHC included a general description of the Plan and map identifying the watershed boundaries. The October 8, 2018, reply of the NAHC identified five California Native American Tribes as potential interested parties and found a negative result of sacred lands within the area of potential project effect (APE). Tribes identified by the NAHC are included in Table 8-2. While no sacred lands were identified and there are no tribal lands within the area of the Plan, the County recognizes that tribes often have cultural, archeological, and other interests in areas outside of their designated tribal lands. In recognition of this, County provided electronic notification, where available, of the Plan's development to tribes identified by the NAHC on October 9, 2018 (See Appendix D). The County intends to continue coordination with these tribes as part of implementation of projects identified by the Plan and during future revisions of the Plan.

⁸ Tulare County Housing Element – Action Program 9 Existing Infrastructure

Tribal Name	Contact	Title	Address	City/State/Zip	Sacred Lands File?
Kern Valley Indian Community	Robert Robinson	Chairperson	P.O. Box 1010	Lake Isabella, CA 93240	No
Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Yokut Tribe	Rueben Barrios Sr.	Chairperson	P.O. Box 8	Lemoore, CA 93245	No
Tubatulabals of Kern Valley	Robert L. Gomez Jr.	Chairperson	P.O. Box 26	Lake Isabella, CA 93240	No
Tule River Indian Tribe	Neil Peyron	Chairperson	P.O. Box 589	Porterville, CA 93258	No
Wuksache Indian Tribe/Eshom Valley Band	Kenneth Woodrow	Chairperson	1179 Rock Haven Ct.	Salinas, CA 93906	No

Table 8-1. NAHC Tribal Coordination List

8.8 SCHEDULE FOR PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND EDUCATION

Plan includes a schedule for initial public engagement and education.

Multiple public engagement and education opportunities will be provided during Plan implementation. These activities are listed in Table 8-3.

Activity	Frequency	Location
 Project Website Management: Project implementation Meeting notices Meeting summaries 	Updates as required	http://www.tularecounty.ca.gov/swrp
 Project recommendation form 		
Plan Implementation Report	Annually, in the 4 th quarter	Tulare County Flood Control Commission
GSA Coordination/Consultation	Monthly, as needed	East Kaweah GSA Greater Kaweah GSA Kings River East GSA
IRWM Coordination/Consultation	Monthly, as needed	Kings Basin Water Authority Kaweah River Basin Integrated Regional Water Management

Table 8-3. Public Engagement and Education Schedule

Key:

GSA = groundwater sustainability agency IRWM = integrated regional water management

This page left blank intentionally.

- California Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Valley Region. (2015). Water Quality Control Plan for the Tulare Lake Basin, Second Edition.
- County of Tulare Resource Management Agency. (2014), Cottonwood Creek Integrated Resources Management Program Draft Program Environmental Impact Report.
- Kang, Joohyon, University of California Los Angeles. (2005). Modeling First Flush and Particle Destabilization: Implications for Design and Operation of Storm water BMPs.
- Scharffenberg, William A., U.S Army Corps of Engineers Hydrologic Engineering Center. (2013), Hydrologic Modeling System HEC-HMS User's Manual. December.
- Stein, E.D., L.L. Tiefenthaler, and K.C. Schiff. (2008). Comparison of storm water pollutant loading by land use type. Southern California Coastal Water Research Project 2008 Annual Report, 15-27.
- Tulare County Flood Control District (1971), Flood Control Master Plan for the County of Tulare, California. June.
- Kings Basin Water Authority (2018), Kings Basin Integrated Water Resource Plan, Project 126: Juvenile Detention Facility – Cottonwood Creek (JDF Complex).
- Kings Basin Water Authority (2018), Kings Basin Integrated Water Resource Plan, Project 124: Yettem-Button Ditch Flood Control Project.
- State Water Resources Control Board (2015), Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines.

This page left blank intentionally.

Section 10 Appendix A – Community Meetings Coordinated with Nongovernmental Organizations

WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR COTTONWOOD CREEK BASIN AND WATER SHEDS

Stakeholder Meeting



Come and participate in:

- Discussions on goals and strategies
- Multi-benefit projects to enhance water supply and achieve water quality goals
- Questions and answers with agency representatives

WHEN: Tuesday July 11, 2017 at 6 p.m.WHERE: Stone Corral Elementary School - 15590 Ave 383, Visalia, CA 93292MORE INFO: Rosa Sanchez (559) 624-7144

Without proper measures, urban runoff within a watershed often picks up pollutants as it flows throughout cities and into storm drains, then rivers, and eventually the ocean. Water quality improvement plans are essential in restoring the health of our waterways. We invite you to discuss our draft plans to improve water flooding and ground water recharge, which are underway for the Cottonwood Creek Basin and Water Sheds.



Planes de mejoramiento de la calidad del agua para la cuenca y las cuencas hidrográficas de Cottonwood Creek

REUNIÓN COMUNITARIA



Venga y participe en:

- Discusiones sobre metas y estrategias
- Proyectos de multiple beneficios para mejorar el abastecimiento de agua y alcanzar metas de calidad del agua
- Preguntas y respuestas con representantes de agencias

CUÁNDO: Martes 11 de julio de 2017 a las 6 p.m.
DÓNDE: Escuela Primaria Stone Corral - 15590 Ave 383, Visalia, CA 93292
MÁS INFORMACIÓN: Rosa Sanchez (559) 624-7144

Sin medidas adecuadas, el derrame pluvial urbano dentro de una cuenca hidrográfica a menudo recoge contaminantes a medida que fluye a través de las ciudades y en los desagües pluviales, luego en los ríos y finalmente en el océano. Los planes de mejora de la calidad del agua son esenciales para restaurar la calidad de nuestros vías fluviales. Lo invitamos a discutir nuestros planes preliminares para mejorar las inundaciones de agua y la recarga de agua subterránea, que están en marcha para la cuenca de Cottonwood Creek y vertientes de agua.



IMPORTANT COMMUNITY MEETING SEVILLE-YETTEM WATER PROJECT

Seville and Yettem residents are invited to an important meeting with the County of Tulare to discuss the Seville-Yettem Water Project! Join us and obtain an update on the current status of the project.

When: Tuesday, July 11, 2017

Time: 6PM - 7:30PM

Where: Stone Corral Elementary School (School Cafeteria) 15590 Ave. 383 Seville, CA 93292

Other meeting topics include emergency notification system and water conservation.

For more information please contact: Maria Herrera, (559) 802-1676



IMPORTANTE JUNTA COMUNITARIA PROYECTO DEL AGUA DE SEVILLE-YETTEM

¡Los residentes de Seville y Yettem están invitados a una junta importante con el Condado de Tulare para hablar sobre el Proyecto de Agua de Seville-Yettem! ¡Participe y obtenga información sobre el estado del proyecto y anticipado calendario de construcción!

Cuando: martes 11 de julio del 2017

Hora: 6PM - 7:30PM

Dónde: Escuela Primaria Stone Corral (Cafetería Escolar) 15590 Ave. 383 Seville, CA 93292

Otros temas de la junta incluyen el sistema de notificación de emergencia y la conservación del agua.

Para más información comuníquese con: Maria Herrera, (559) 802-1676.



The County of Tulare invites you to join the discussion in the development of the Storm Water Resource Plan. We encourage community participation and questions to improve water quality, water supply, flood management, and environmental habitat restoration in your community.

COME TO LEARN ABOUT:

• Stormwater and its beneficial function in improving water quality and supply

- Identified projects for the protection of communities flooding
 - Improvement/restoration of the natural environments
 - Grant funding opportunities for proposed projects

LOCATION: IVANHOE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CAFETERIA 16030 AVE 332 IVANHOE, CA 93235

> DATE: THURSDAY, SEPT. 14 @ 6P.M. THIS IS NOT A VUSD SPONSORED EVENT

For more information, contact Rosa Sanchez at (559) 624-7144

REUNIÓN COMUNITARIA PLAN DE RECURSOS DE AGUAS PLUVIALES PARA LA CUENCA DEL COTTONWOOD CREEK





El Condado de Tulare le invita a unirse a la discusión en el desarrollo del plan de recursos de aguas pluviales. Invitamos la participación de la comunidad y sus preguntas para mejorar la calidad del agua, reserva de agua, el control de inundaciones y la restauración ambiental del hábitat en su comunidad.

VEN Y APRENDA SOBRE:

- Aguas pluviales y su función beneficiosa en la mejora de la calidad del agua y reserva de agua
 - Proyectos identificados para la protección de inundaciones de comunidades
 - Mejorar/restauración de los ambientes naturales
 - Oportunidades de financiación para los proyectos propuestos

DÓNDE: CAFETERÍA DE LA ESCUELA PRIMARIA DE IVANHOE 16030 AVE 332 IVANHOE, CA 93235

> FECHA: 14 DE SEPTIEMBRE A LAS 6 PM ESTE NO ES UN EVENTO PATROCINADO POR VUSD

Para más información, comunicarse con Rosa Sanchez at (559) 624-7144

Section 11 Appendix B – Public Comments to Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan

Moyle, Craig

From:	Brown, Kimberly <kimberly.brown@wonderful.com></kimberly.brown@wonderful.com>
Sent:	Friday, October 12, 2018 2:49 PM
То:	Moyle, Craig
Cc:	Widhalm, Mike
Subject:	Fwd: TWC_Cottonwood Creek
Attachments:	image001.png; ATT00001.htm; TWC_Cottonwood Creek.pdf; ATT00002.htm

Craig,

Attached is the comment letter submitted by TWC. Thank you for notifying us of the project. Thanks again,

Kimberly Brown

Vice President, Company Resources

Direct: (661) 776-1319 Mobile: (661) 203-5540

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Frank, Melissa" <<u>Melissa.Frank@wonderful.com</u>> Date: October 12, 2018 at 2:36:49 PM PDT To: "<u>rweatherspoon@co.tulare.ca.us</u>" <<u>rweatherspoon@co.tulare.ca.us</u>> Cc: "Brown, Kimberly" <<u>Kimberly.Brown@wonderful.com</u>>, "Frank, Melissa" <<u>Melissa.Frank@wonderful.com</u>> Subject: TWC_Cottonwood Creek

Please see attached comments on behalf of The Wonderful Company regarding the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan.

Melissa Frank (Poole) Senior Counsel/Director of Government Affairs October 12, 2018

VIA EMAIL AND REGULAR MAIL

Tulare County Resource Management Agency 5961 South Mooney Boulevard Visalia , California 93277

Re: Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan

To Whom it May Concern:

The Wonderful Company LLC ("Wonderful"), on behalf of Wonderful Citrus LLC, appreciates the opportunity to provide feedback to the Tulare County Resource Management Agency ("Agency") on the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan (hereinafter "Cottonwood Creek Plan"). Wonderful, and its affiliates, farms and processes various citrus varietals throughout California's Central Valley, including Valenica and navel oranges, and mandarins.

We are generally supportive of the overall goals and objectives of the Cottonwood Creek Plan. However, we have some concerns related to Section 6.5.1.3 *Upper Detention/Retention Project*. As proposed, Section 6.5.1.3 would secure a flood easement on 300 acres of agricultural land in the Cottonwood Creek area, but does not specifically identify the lands to be covered. As landowners in the Cottonwood Creek area, we are concerned about potential impacts to our property, which contain permanent citrus crops. As such, if the project identified in Section 6.5.1.3 is to move forward, we request that that additional analysis be undertaken, including an analysis of the impacts this project will have on agricultural properties.

We appreciate the Agency taking our comments into consideration. We would also like to be included on all future notices regarding the Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan.

Sincerely,

Melissa Frank Senior Counsel/Director of Government Affairs

Moyle, Craig

_	
From:	Mark Larsen <mlarsen@kdwcd.com></mlarsen@kdwcd.com>
Sent:	Friday, October 12, 2018 2:38 PM
То:	Moyle, Craig
Cc:	rweatherspoon@co.tulare.ca.us
Subject:	RE: Public Draft Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan

Craig and Randy,

First let me apologize for not fully viewing the JDA project (and the other projects) with all my hats on!

I have just started wading through the draft Plan and I wanted to give you a heads-up that I have a concern as the Watermaster of the Kaweah and St. Johns Rivers Association in terms of water supply to the downstream water users. As I said I have not made it through the whole document, so this is just a courtesy note.

Sitting on the Flood Commission I have seen value in the JDA project for its ability to help manage flood flows. I need to emphasize "flood flows." It is my feeling at this early read of the draft that the project is suggesting it will take flow off of Cottonwood Creek at times when it poses no flood risk. If so, the project will be diminishing water historically utilized off the system for irrigation.

I have not seen this described in the draft yet, but Cottonwood Creek bleeds wholly into the St. Johns River, which then becomes Cross Creek just upstream of Highway 99. There are water users who divert Cottonwood Creek water off of all three streams.

Let me continue to explore the draft and review the situation and I'll get back to you.

Thanks, Mark

From: Moyle, Craig [mailto:craig.moyle@stantec.com]
Sent: Tuesday, October 09, 2018 4:04 PM
To: Moyle, Craig
Cc: rweatherspoon@co.tulare.ca.us
Subject: Public Draft Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan

Agencies and Other Interested Parties of the Cottonwood Creek Watershed:

As stated during the Sept. 28, 2018, meeting of the Tulare County Flood Control Commission, the County's Resource Management Agency has prepared a Storm Water Resources Plan for the Cottonwood Creek Watershed for, among other things, support implementation of multi-beneficial projects in the watershed. As discussed at the September meeting, a Public Draft Cottonwood Creek Stormwater Resources Plan was released for review on Oct. 1, 2018 and presented to the County Board of Supervisors at today's regular session. It is scheduled for adoption by the Board at its Oct. 30, 2018, meeting. More information on the plan, and a form to submit comments, is available at www.tularecounty.ca.gov/swrp.

A copy of this plan is available at the link above and attached. If you have any questions, please don't hesitate to contact Randy Weatherspoon or myself.

Regards, Craig

Craig Moyle, PMP Principal Public Affairs Specialist Stantec Section 10 Appendix A 3301 C Street, Suite 1900 Sacramento, Calif. 95816 Phone: +1 (916) 418-8248 Cell: +1 (916) 642-6383 Craig.Moyle@stantec.com

The content of this email is the confidential property of Stantec and should not be copied, modified, retransmitted, or used for any purpose except with Stantec's written authorization. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete all copies and notify us immediately.

Please consider the environment before printing this email.
Section 12 Appendix C – Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan Email Notification List

Entity	Contact Name	Email
MKGSA Adv. Committee	Blake Mauritson	blakemauritson@gmail.com
Lemon Cove	Carol Cairns	carol@theplanningprinciple.com
Ivanhoe PUD	Carol Fina	ivanhoepud@sbcglobal.net
Tulare Basin Wildlife Partners	Carole Combs	ccombs@thegrid.net
Tule River Indian Tribe	Chairman Neil Pyron	Neil.Peyron@tulerivertribe-nsn.gov; tina.peyron@tulerivertribe-nsn.gov
Laura Brown	Citrus Mutual	laura@cacitrusmutual.com
Stone Corral Irrigation District	Dale West	stonecorralidgm@gmail.com
Patterson Tract CSD	Dan Holguin	danholguin50@gmail.com
Kings County Water District	Dennis Mills	dennis.kingscwd@gmail.com
Tulare Basin Wildlife Partners	Dezaraye Bagalayos	dezaraye@gmail.com
Tule River Indian Tribe	Environmental Department, Charles Lwenya	Charles.Lwenya@tulerivertribe-nsn.gov
Cal Water Service	Tamara Kelly	tkelly@calwater.com
City of Visalia	Gladys Ruiz	gladys.ruiz@ci.visalia.ca.us
St. Johns Water District	James Silva	jsilva@cpdc1874.org
City of Woodlake	Jason Waters	jwaters@cityofwoodlake.ca.us
Self-Help Enterprises	Jessi Snyder	Jsnyder@selfhelpenterprises.org
Tract 92 CSD	Joleen Palmer	joleen@kaweahfin.com
City of Visalia	Leslie Caviglia	lcaviglia@ci.visalia.ca.us
Patterson Tract CSD	Linda Lee	pattersontract@gmail.com
Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District	Mark Larsen	mlarsen@kdwcd.com
Lindmore Irrigation District	Michael Hagman	mhagman@lindmoreid.com
Tulare Basin Wildlife Initiative	Michelle Selmon	Michelle.Selmon@water.ca.gov
Self-Help Enterprises	Paul Boyer	Pboyer@selfhelpenterprises.org
Tulare Irrigation District	Aaron Fakuda	akf@tulareid.org
Leadership Counsel	Amanda Monaco	amonaco@leadershipcounsel.org
City of Woodlake	Jason Waters	jwaters@ci.woodlake.ca.us
Lakeside Irrigation Water District	Shawn Corley	sc.corley@yahoo.com
Sequoia River Lands	Soapy Mulholland	soapy@sequoiariverlands.org
Cal Water Service	Tom Brassfield	tbrassfield@calwater.com
Exeter Irrigation District	Tom Weddle	tgweddle@gmail.com tweddle@exeterid.org

Entity	Contact Name	Email
Ivanhoe Irrigation District	Tom Weddle	tgweddle@gmail.com
Tachi Yokut Tribe (Santa Rosa Rancheria)	Tribal Council, C.O. Shelly Flores	sflores@tachi-yokut-nsn.gov
Farm Bureau	Tricia Stever Blattler	pstever@tulcofb.org
County of Fresno	Bernard Jimenez	bjimenez@co.fresno.ca.us
Alta ID	Chad Wegley	Cw@altaid.org
Kings County Water District	Dennis Mills	dennis.kingscwd@gmail.com
Orange Cove Irrigation District	Fergus Morrisey	fmorrissey@orangecoveid.org
Self-Help Enterprises	Adriana Renteria	adriana.renteria@communitywatercenter.org
Keller Wegley Consulting	Jim Wegley	Kelweg1@aol.com
Self-Help Enterprises	Maria Herrera	mariah@selfhelpenterprises.org
	Orosi Public Utilities District	orosipud@sbcglobal.net
Provost and Pritchard	Ronald Samuelian	rsamuelian@ppeng.com
City of Orange Cove	Samual Escobar	samescobar@cityoforangecove.com
James ID	Steve Stadler	sstadler@jamesid.org
Community Water Center	Susana DeAnda	susana.deanda@communitywatercenter.org
Mid-Kaweah GSA	Paul Hendrix	jph@midkaweah.org
GKGSA	Eric Osterling	eosterling@greaterkaweahgsa.org
EKGSA	Michael Hagman	mhagman@lindmoreid.com
Kings Basin Water Authority	Soua Lee	slee@krcd.org

Section 13 Appendix D – Native American Heritage Commission Response

NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE COMMISSION

Cultural and Environmental Department 1550 Harbor Blvd., Suite 100 West Sacramento, CA 95691 (916) 373-3710



October 8, 2018

Randy Weatherspoon Tulare County

Sent by Email: rweatherspoon@co.tulare.ca.us Number of Pages: 2

RE: Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan, Tulare County

Dear Mr. Weatherspoon:

A record search of the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File was completed for the area of potential project effect (APE) referenced above with negative results. Please note that the absence of specific site information in the Sacred Lands File does not indicate the absence of Native American cultural resources in any APE.

I suggest you contact all of those listed, if they cannot supply information, they might recommend others with specific knowledge. The list should provide a starting place to locate areas of potential adverse impact within the APE. By contacting all those on the list, your organization will be better able to respond to claims of failure to consult. If a response has not been received within two weeks of notification, the NAHC requests that you follow-up with a telephone call to ensure that the project information has been received.

If you receive notification of change of addresses and phone numbers from any of these individuals or groups, please notify me. With your assistance we are able to assure that our lists contain current information. If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact via email: Sharaya.Souza@nahc.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Myc

Sharaya Souza Staff Services Analyst (916) 573 -0168

Native American Heritage Commission Native American Consultation List 10/8/2018

Kern Valley Indian Community Julie Turner, Secretary P.O. Box 1010 Lake Isabella [,]CA 93240 (661) 340-0032 Cell

Kawaiisu Tubatulabal Wuksache Indian Tribe/Eshom Valley Band
Kenneth Woodrow, Chairperson1179 Rock Haven Ct.Foothill YokutsSalinas,CA 93906Monokwood8934@aol.comWuksache(831) 443-9702

Kern Valley Indian Community Robert Robinson, Chairperson P.O. Box 1010 Lake Isabella ,CA 93283 brobinson@iwvisp.com (760) 378-2915 Cell

Tubatulabal Kawaiisu

Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Yokut Tribe Rueben Barrios Sr., Chairperson P.O. Box 8 Tache Lemoore ,CA 93245 Tachi (559) 924-1278 Yokut (559) 924-3583 Fax

Tubatulabals of Kern Valley Robert L. Gomez, Jr., Tribal Chairperson P.O. Box 226 Tubatulabal Lake Isabella [,]CA 93240 (760) 379-4590 (760) 379-4592 Fax

Tule River Indian Tribe Neil Peyron, Chairperson P.O. Box 589 Yokuts Porterville [,]CA 93258 neil.peyron@tulerivertribe-nsn.gov (559) 781-4271 (559) 781-4610 Fax

This list is current as of the date of this document and is based on the information available to the Commission on the date it was produced.

Distribution of this list does not relieve any person of statutory responsibility as defined in Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code, Section 5097.94 of the Public Resources Code, or Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code.

This list is only applicable for contacting local Native American Tribes for the proposed: Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan, Tulare County.

Section 14 Appendix E – Storm Water Resource Plan Checklist and Self-Certification

	Watershed Identification	
	(Guidelines Section VI.A)	
Y	Plan identifies watershed and subwatershed(s) for storm water resource planning	10565 (c) 10562 (b)(1)
Refere	ences:	
Cotton Prepar	wood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 2.1 Watersheds and Subwatersheds; Page ed by Tulare County; November 2016	2-1 and Figure 2-1;
	Plan is developed on a watershed basis, using boundaries as delineated by USGS. Ca	lWater, USGS
Y	Hydrologic Unit designations, or an applicable regional water management group, an description and boundary map of each watershed and sub-watershed applicable to t	nd includes a the Plan.
Refere	Inces:	
Cotton Prepar	wood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 2.1 Watersheds and Subwatersheds; Page ed by Tulare County; November 2016	2-1 and Figure 2-1;
	Plan includes an explanation of why the watershed(s) and sub-watershed(s) are app water management with a multiple-benefit watershed approach;	ropriate for storm
Refere	ences:	
Y	of individual water, wastewater, and land use agencies, including those not involved groundwater basin boundarie, etc.; preferably provided in a geographic information	in the Plan; systm shape file);
Refere	ences:	
Cotton 3: Pret	wood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 2.2 Political and Service Area Boundaries; I pared by Tulare County; November 2016	Page 2-1 and Figure 2-
	Plan describes the water quality priorities within the watershed based on, at a minir	num, applicable
Y	TMDLs and consideration of water body-pollutant combinations listed on the State' Section 303(d) list of water quality limited segments (a.k.a impaired waters list)	s Clean Water Act
Refere		
Cotton Tulare	wood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 2.3 Water Quality Priorities; Page 2-6 and County; November 2016	Page 2-7; Prepared by
Y	Plan describes the general quality and identification of surface and groundwater reso watershed (preferably provided in a geographic information system shape file);	ources within the
<u>Ref</u> ere	lences:	
Cotton Figure	wood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 2.4 Surface Water and Groundwater Reso 2-2; Prepared by Tulare County; November 2016	urces; Page 2-7 and
	Plan describes the local entity or entities that provide potable water supplies and the potable water provided by the water suppliers;	e estimated volume of
Refere	l inces:	

Y	Plan includes map(s) showing location of native habitats, creeks, lakes, rivers, parks, and other natural or open space within the sub-watershed boundaries;
Refere	nces:
Cottonv Figure 2	vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 2.1 Surface Water and Groundwater Resources; Page 2-1 and 2-2; Prepared by Tulare County; November 2016
Befere	Plan identifies (quantitative, if possible) the natural watershed processes that occur within the sub- watershed and a description of how those natural watershed processes have been disrupted within the sub-watershed (e.g. high levels of imperviousness convert the watershed processes of infiltration and interflow to surface runoff increasing runoff volumes; development commonly ocvers natural surfaces and often introduces non-native vegetation, preventing the natural supply of sediment from reaching receiving waters).

	Water Quality Compliance (Guidelines Section V)		
Y	Plan identifies activities that generate to the pollution of stormwater or dry weather runoff, or that impair the effective beneficial use of storm water or dry weather runoff.	10562(d)(7)	
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv by Tula	<u>References:</u> Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 3.1 Land Use and Activities; Page 3-1 through Page 3-2; Prepared by Tulare County; November 2016		
Y	Plan describes how it is consistent with and assists in, compliance with total maximum daily load implementation plans and applicable national pollutant discharge elimination system permits.	10562(b)(5)	
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv County;	References: Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 3.2 TMDL and NPDES Compliance; Page 3-2; Prepared by Tulare County; November 2016		
Y	Plan identifies applicable permits and describes how it meets all applicable waste discharge permit requirements	10562(b)(6)	
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv Prepare	<u>nces:</u> vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 3.3 Waste Discharge Permit Compliance; H ed by Tulare County; November 2016	Page 3-2 and Page 3-3;	

Organization, Coorination, Collaboration (Guidelines Section VI.B)			
Y	Local agencies and nongovernamental organizations were consulted in Plan	10565(a)	
Refere	nces:		
Cottonw County;	Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 4.1 Local Agency Coordination; Page 4-1; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018		
Y	Community Participation was provided for in Plan development	10562(b)(4)	
Refere	nces:		
Cottonw Tulare (Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 4.5 Public Outreach and Engagement; Page 4-12; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018		
Y	Plan includes description of the existing integrated regional water management grou integrated regional water management plan.	p(s) implementing an	
Refere	nces:		
Cottonw and Fig	vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 4.3 Integrated Regional Water Manageme ure 4-2 Cottonwood Creek IRWMP Boundaries; Page 4-9; Prepared by Tulare County; Septe	nt Groups; Page 4-6, mber 2018	

Organization, Coorination, Collaboration (cont.)	
Y	Plan includes identification of and coordination with agencies and organizations (including, but not limited to public agencies, nonprofit organizations, and privately owned water utilities) that need to participate and implement their own authorities and mandates in order to address the storm water and dry weather runoff management objectives of the Plan for the targeted watershed.
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv Ground Bounda	L nces: vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 4.4 Public Outreach and Engagement; Page 4-10; Section 4.1.2.3 water Sustainability Agencies; Page 4-4; Figure 4-1. Cottonwood Creek Groundwater Sustainability Agency ries; Page 4-5; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018
Y	Plan includes identification of nonprofit organizations working on storm water and dry weather resource planning or management in the watershed.
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv Disadvo	<u>nces:</u> vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 4.2 Non-Governmental Organizations; Page 4-10; Section 8.6 antaged and Climate-Vulnerable Communities; Page 8-1; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018
Y	Plan includes identification and discussion of public engagement efforts and community participation in Plan development.
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv Tulare	n <u>ces:</u> vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 4.5 Public Outreach and Engagement; Page 4-12; Prepared by County; September 2018
Y	Plan includes identification of required decisions that must be made by local, state or federal regulatory agencies for Plan implementation and coordinated watershed-based or regional monitoring and visualization
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv Septem	1 nces: vood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan; Section 4.1 Local Agencies, Page 4-1; Perepared by Tualre County; ber 2018
Y	Plan describes planning and coordination of existing local governmental agencies, including where necessary new or altered governance structures to support collaboration among two or more lead local agencies responsible for plan implementation.
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv County;	 nces: vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 4.4.2 Regulartory Agencies; Page 4-10; Prepared by Tulare September 2018
Y	Plan describes the relationship of the Plan to other existing planning documents, ordinances, and programs established by local agencies.
Refere	nces: Nood Creek Storm Water Resources Plan: Section 4.4.2 Relationship with Other Planning Documents, Page 4.10
COLLONN	(If applicable)Plan explans why individual agency participation in various isolated efforts is appropriate.
Refere	nces:

	Quantitative Methods		
	(Guidelines Section VI.B)		
Y	For all analyses: Plan includes an integrated metrics-based analysis to demonstrate that the Plan's proposed storm water and dry weather capture projects and programs will satisfy the Plan's identified water management objectives and multiple benefits.		
Refere	nces:		
Cotton by Tula	vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 5.1 Metrics-Based Analysis; Page 5-1 through Page 5-3; Prepared re County; November 2016		
	For water quality project analysis (section VI.C.2.a): Plan includes an analysis of how each project and program complies with or is consistent with an applicable NPDES permit. The analysis should simulate the proposed watershed-based outcomes using modeling, calculations, pollutant mass balances, water volume balances, and/or other methods of analysis. Describes how each project or program will contribute to the preservation, restoration, or enhancement of watershed processes (as described in Guidelines section VI.C.2.a)		
<u>Refere</u>	nces:		
Y	For storm water capture and use project analysis (section VI.C.2.b): Plan includes an analysis of how collectively the projects and programs in the watershed will capture and use the proposed amount of storm water and dry weather runoff.		
<u>Refere</u> Cotton Prepare	n <u>ces:</u> vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 5.1.2 Storm Water Capture and Use Project Analysis; Page 5-3; ed by Tulare County; November 2016		
Y	For water supply and flood management project analysis (section VI.C.2.c): Plan includes an analysis of how each project and program will maximize and/or augment water supply.		
<u>Refere</u> Cotton Page 5-	n <u>ces:</u> vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 5.1.3 Water Supply and Flood Management Project Analysis; -3; Prepared by Tulare County; November 2016		
Y	For environmental and community benefit analysis (section VI.C.2.d): Plan includes a narrative of how each project and program will benefit the environment and/or community, with some type of quantitative measurement.		
<u>Refere</u> Cotton Prepare	nces: vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 5.1.4 Environmental and Community Benefit Analysis; Page 5-3; ed by Tulare County; November 2016		

Quantitative Methods (cont.)

(Guidelines Section VI.B)

Data management (section VI.C.3):

Plan describes data collection and management, including: a) mechanisms by which data will be managed and stored; b) how data will be accessed by stakeholders and the public; c) how existing water quality and water quality monitoring will be assessed; d) frequency at which data will be updated; and e) how data gaps will be identified.

References:

Identification and Prioritization of Projects			
	(Guidelines Section VI.D)		
Y	Plan identifies opportunities to augment local water supply through groundwater recharge or storage for beneficial use of storm water and dry weather runoff.	10562(d)(1)	
Refere	nces:		
Cottonv Prepare	vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 6.1 Opportunities to Augment Local Water ed by Tulare County; November 2016	Supply; Page 6-1;	
Y	Plan identifies opportunities for source control for both pollution and dry weather runoff volume, onsite and local infiltration, and use of storm water and dry weather runoff.	10562(d)(2)	
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv Tulare	References: Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 6.2 Opportunities for Source Control; Page 6-4; Prepared by Tulare County; November 2016		
Y	Plan identifies projects that reestablish natural water drainage treatment and infiltration systems, or mimic natural system functions to the maximum extent feasible.	10562(d)(3)	
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv Prepare	References: Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 6.3 Projects that Reestablish Natural Water Drainage; Page 6-4; Prebared by Tulare County; November 2016		
Y	Plan identifies opportunities to develop, restore, or enhance habitat and open space through storm water and dry weather runoff management, including	10562(d)(4)	
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv 6-4; Pre	<u>nces:</u> vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 6.4 Opportunities to Develop, Restore, or E epared by Tulare County; November 2016	Enhance Habitat; Page	
Y	Plan identifies opportunities to use existing publicly owned lands and easements, including, but not limited to, parks, public open space, community gardens, farm and agricultural preserves, school sites, and government office buildings and complexes, to capture, clean, store, and use storm water and dry weather runoff either onsite or offsite. riverside habitats, parkways, and parks.	10562(d)(5) 10562(b)(8)	
<u>References:</u> Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 6.4 Opportunities to Develop, Restore, or Enhance Habitat; Page 6-4; Prepared by Tulare County; November 2016			

Identification and Prioritization of Projects (cont.)			
	(Guidelines Section VI.D)		
Y	For new development and redevelopments (if applicable): Plan identifies design criteria and best management practices to prevent storm water and dry weather runoff pollution and increase effective storm water and dry weather runoff management for new and upgraded infrastructure and residential, commercial, industrial, and public development.	10562(d)(6)	
Refere	nces:		
Cottonv Redeve	vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 6.6 Design Criteria and BMPs for New De lopment; Page 6-10; Prepared by Tulare County; November 2016	velopment and	
Y	Plan uses appropriate quantitative methods for prioritization of projects. (This should be accomplished by using a metrics-based and integrated evaluation and analysis of multiple benefits to maximize water supply, water quality, flood management, environmental, and other community benefits within the watershed.)	10562(d)(6)	
Refere	nces:		
Cottonv Tulare (vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 5 Quantitiative Methods; Page 5-1 through County; November 2016	Page 5-3; Prepared by	
Y	Overall: Plan prioritizes projects and programs using a metric-driven approach and a geospa benefits to maximize water supply, water quality, flood management, environmental benefits within the watershed.	tial analysis of multiple , and community	
Refere	nces:		
Cottonv 6-12; P	vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 6 Project Identification and Prioritization; P repared by Tulare County; November 2016	age 6-1 through Page	
Y	Multiple benefits: Each project in accordance with the Plan contributes to at least two or more Main Benefits and the Maximum number of Additional Benefits as listed in Table 4 of the Guidelines. (Benefits are not counted twice if they apply to more than one category.)		
<u>Refere</u> Cottonv 6-12; P	1 nces: vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 6 Project Identification and Prioritization; P repared by Tulare County; November 2016	age 6-1 through Page	

Implementation Strategy and Schedule			
	(Guidelines Section VI.E)		
Y	 Plan identifies resources for Plan implementation, including: 1) projection of additional funding needs and sources for administration and implementation needs; and 2) schedule for arranging and securing Plan implementation financing. 		
Refere	nces:		
Cottony County,	wood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 7.1 Resources for Implementation; Page 7- ; September 2018	l; Prepared by Tulare	
Y	Plan projects and programs are identified to ensure the effective implementation of the storm water resource plan pursuant to this part and achieve multiple benefits.	10562(d)(8)	
<u>Refere</u> Cottony Tulare	References: Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 7.2 Project and Program Implementation; Page 7-9; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018		
Y	The Plan identifies the development of appropriate decision support tools and the data necessary to use the decision support tools.	10562(d)(8)	
Refere	nces:		
Cotton	wood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 7.3 Data Collection and Decision Support	Tools; Page 7-10;	
Prepare	ed by Tulare County; September 2018		
Y	 Plan describes implementation strategy including: a) Timeline for submitting Plan into existing plans, as applicable; b) Specific actions by which Plan will be implemented; c) All entities responsible for project implementation; d) Description of community participation strategy; e) Procedures to track status of each project; f) Timelines for all active or planned projects; g) Procedures for ongoing review, updates, and adaptive management of the Plan; ar h) A strategy and timeline for obtaining necessary federal, state, and local permits. 	nd	
Refere	nces:		
Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 7.4 Implementation Strategy; Page 7-10; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018			
Y	Applicable IRWM plan: The Plan will be submitted, upon development, to the applicable integrated regional water management (IRWM) group for incorporation into the IRWM plan.	10562(b)(7)	
References: Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 7.5 Incorporation with IRWM Plan; Page 7-19; Prepared by Tulgra County: Sectomber 2018			

Implementation Strategy and Schedule (cont)

(Guidelines Section VI.E)

Y Plan describes how implementation performance measures will be tracked

References:

Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 7.5 Incorporation with IRWM Plan; Page 7-18; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018

Education, Outreach, Public Participation (Guidelines Section VI.F)			
Y	Outreach and Scoping: Community participation is provided for in Plan implementation.	10562(b)(4)	
<u>Refere</u>	nces:		
Cottonv Prepare	vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 8.1 Education, Outreach, and Public Partici ed by Tulare County; September 2018	ipation; Page 8-1;	
Y	Plan describes public education and public participation opportunities to engage the considering major technical and policy issues related to the development and impler	public when mentation.	
Refere	nces:		
Cottonv Prepare	Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 8.2 Implementation of Technical and Policy Isues; Page 8-3; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018		
Y	Y Plan describes mechanisms, processes, and milestones that have been or will be used to facilitate public participation and communication during development and implementation of the Plan.		
Refere	nces:		
Cottonv Prepare	vood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 8.3 Mechanisms to Facilitate Public Partici ed by Tulare County; September 2018	bation; Page 8-3;	
Y	Plan describes mechanisms to engage communities in project design and implementa	ation	
Refere	nces:		
Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 8.4 Project Design Engagement; Page 8-1; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018			
Y	Plan identifies specific audiences including local ratepayers, developers, locally regula industrial stakeholders, nonprofit organizations, and the general public.	ated commercial and	
References:			
Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 8.5 Audience Identification; Page 8-4; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018			

Education, Outreach, Public Participation (cont.) (Guidelines Section VI.F)	
Y	Plan describes strategies to engage disadvantaged and climate vulnerable communities within the Plan
_	boundaries and ongoing tracking of their involvement in the planning process
References:	
Cotton	wood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 8.6 Disadvantaged and Climate Vulnerable Communities; Page 8-
6; Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018	
Y	Plan describes efforts to identify and address environmental injustice needs and issues within the
	watershed.
References:	
Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 8.7 Identification of Environmental Injustice Needs; Page 8-8;	
Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018	
Y	Plan includes a schedule for initial public engagement and education.
References:	
Cottonwood Creek Storm Water Resource Plan; Section 8.8 Schedule for Public Engagement and Education; Page 8-9;	
Prepared by Tulare County; September 2018	

DECLARATION AND SIGNATURE

I declare under penalty of perjury that all information provided is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signature

Title

Date

Signature

Title

Date